
Committee Agenda  
 

 

1 

 
 
AREA PLANNING SUBCOMMITTEE SOUTH 
Wednesday, 5th November, 2008 
 
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook Road, Loughton, Essex 
  
Room: Dining Hall 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Rebecca Perrin - Office of the Chief Executive 
Email: rperrin@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 01992 56 4532 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J Hart (Chairman), Mrs L Wagland (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, 
R Barrett, D Bateman, K Chana, Mrs S Clapp, Miss R Cohen, M Cohen, D Dodeja, 
Mrs A Haigh, J Knapman, R Law, J Markham, G Mohindra, Mrs C Pond, Mrs P Richardson, 
B Sandler, P Spencer, Mrs J Sutcliffe and H Ulkun 
 
 
 

 
A PLAN SHOWING THE LOCATION OF RODING VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL IS 

ATTACHED TO THIS AGENDA. A BRIEFING WILL BE HELD FOR THE CHAIRMAN, 
VICE-CHAIRMAN AND GROUP SPOKESPERSONS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE, AT  

6.30 P.M. PRIOR TO THE MEETING 
 

 
 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 5 November 2008 
 

2 

 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast;  
 
2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before 
speaking; and  
 
3. the Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be filmed live for 
subsequent uploading to the Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the public seating area it is possible that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast although Officers will try and avoid this. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you have any concerns 
about this you should speak to the Webcasting Officer.” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 

showing the location of the meeting. 
 

 3. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 30) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee. 
 

 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 5 November 2008 
 

3 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 31 - 74) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. PROBITY IN PLANNING REPORT  (Pages 75 - 82) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) to consider the attached report. 
 

 9. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 10. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 5 November 2008 
 

4 

exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 6



Area Plans Subcommittee South – Location Plan

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.software-partners.co.uk

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee 
South

Date: 15 October 2008

   
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook 

Road, Loughton, Essex 
Time: 7.35  - 10.00 pm 

Members
Present:

J Hart (Chairman), Mrs L Wagland (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, 
D Bateman, K Chana, D Dodeja, J Markham, Mrs C Pond, Mrs P Richardson, 
B Sandler, P Spencer and Mrs J Sutcliffe 

Other
Councillors:

Apologies: R Barrett, Mrs S Clapp, Miss R Cohen, M Cohen, Mrs A Haigh, J Knapman, 
R Law and G Mohindra 

Officers
Present:

N Richardson (Principal Planning Officer), C Neilan (Conservation Officer), 
G J Woodhall (Democratic Services Officer), A Hendry (Democratic Services 
Officer) and M Jenkins (Democratic Services Assistant) 

55. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. 

56. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 

57. MINUTES  

 RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 September 2008 be taken as read 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record, subject to the following 
addition to minute 51 – Declarations of Interest: 

“(e) That, pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor 
Mrs C Pond declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda 
by virtue of being a member of the Loughton Residents Association. The 
Councillor had determined that her interest was not prejudicial and would 
remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting 
thereon:

Agenda Item 3

Page 9



Area Planning Subcommittee South  15 October 2008 

2

• EPF/1484/08 – 44 Forest Road, Loughton.” 

58. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors K Angold-
Stephens, Mrs C Pond and Mrs P Richardson declared a personal interest in the 
following items of the agenda, by virtue of being members of Loughton Town Council. 
The Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would 
remain in the meeting for the consideration of the applications and voting thereon: 

• EPF/0099/08  90 Church Hill, Loughton; 

• EPF/1347/08  90 Church Hill, Loughton; 

• EPF/1231/08  20 Connaught Avenue, Loughton; 

• EPF/1411/08  2c Goldings Road, Loughton; 

• EPF/1703/08 Woodberrie House, Woodbury Hill, Loughton; and 

• EPF/1779/08  9-11 High Beech Road, Loughton. 

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors K Chana, B 
Sandler and Mrs L Wagland declared a personal interest in the following items of the 
agenda, by virtue of being members of Chigwell Parish Council. The Councillors had 
determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for 
the consideration of the applications and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1480/08 Farmhouse, Gravel Lane, Chigwell; and 

• EPF/1647/08 The Stables, 60a Hainault Road, Chigwell. 

(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors D Dodeja, P 
Spencer and Mrs J Sutcliffe declared a personal interest in the following items of the 
agenda, by virtue of being members of Buckhurst Hill Parish Council. The Councillors 
had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the 
meeting for the consideration of the applications and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1615/08 160 Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill; and 

• EPF/1753/08 102-104 Queen’s Road, Buckhurst Hill. 

(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors K Angold-
Stephens and J Markham declared a personal interest in the following items of the 
agenda, by virtue of being members of the Loughton Residents Association. The 
Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in 
the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1411/08 2c Goldings Road, Loughton; and 

• EPF/1779/08 9-11 High Beech Road, Loughton. 

(e) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, the entire Sub-
Committee declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue 
of the site being a Council owned property. The Councillors had determined that their 
interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1615/08 160 Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill. 

(f) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs L 
Wagland declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of 
being the Council’s representative on the Buckhurst Hill Town Centre Partnership. 

Page 10



Area Planning Subcommittee South  15 October 2008 

3

The Councillor had determined that her interest was not prejudicial and would remain 
in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1753/08 102-104 Queen’s Road, Buckhurst Hill. 

59. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

60. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 

RESOLVED: 

 That the planning applications numbered 1 – 10 be determined as set out in 
the attached schedule to these minutes. 

61. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 

CHAIRMAN

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/0099/08

SITE ADDRESS: 90 Church Hill 
Loughton
Essex 
IG10

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Johns 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO 32/98 Oak: Fell. 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one month of the 
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority.  If within a period of five years from the 
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 

2 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works.

Minute Item 60

Page 5Page 13



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/1347/08

SITE ADDRESS: 90 Church Hill 
Loughton
Essex 
IG10 1LB 

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Johns 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/32/98 T2 Ash - Fell and Replace 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one month of the 
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority.  If within a period of five years from the 
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 

2 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works.

Page 6Page 14



 Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/1480/08

SITE ADDRESS: Farmhouse
Gravel Lane 
Chigwell
Essex 
IG7 6DQ 

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Chigwell Village 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing house and erection of replacement two 
storey four bedroom residential dwelling. 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 

3 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the first floor flank walls of the 
development hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 

4 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 

5 Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such 
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and 
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and 
maintained in the agreed positions. 

6 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in the first floor flank walls shall be fitted with obscured glass and have 
fixed frames to a height of 1.7m above the internal floor level, and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 

7 No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved plans 
shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any way or 

Page 7Page 15



removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without 
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  All tree works approved shall 
be carried out in accordance with British Standard Recommendations for Tree Work 
(B.S.3998: 1989).

If any tree shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely 
damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, another 
tree, shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the same place, and that tree, shrub, or 
hedge shall be of such size, specification, and species, and should be planted at 
such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   

If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective 
another tree of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted 
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation.

8 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface 
materials for the driveway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The agreed surface treatment shall be completed prior to the 
first occupation of the development. 

9 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance 
works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the 
presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as 
below.  Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations, 
appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary 
maintenance works adopted. 

Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the 
investigation shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and the 
completed phase 1 investigation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
upon completion for approval. 

Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a 
protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencing the study and the completed phase 2 
investigation with remediation proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to any remediation works being carried out. 

Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance 
programme shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to 
first occupation of the completed development. 

10 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Page 8Page 16



11 Prior to commencement of development, details of levels shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing the levels of the site prior to 
development and the proposed levels of all ground floor slabs of buildings, roadways 
and accessways and landscaped areas.   The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with those approved details. 

12 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no development generally permitted 
by virtue of Part 1, Classes A and B shall be undertaken without the prior written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. 

13 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 

The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, 
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 

The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 

The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout 
the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 

14 No development shall take place until a Sustainability Report to achieve at least 
Level 3* of the Code for Sustainable Homes has been submitted to be approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The house shall not be occupied until it has 
been issued with a final Code certificate of compliance. 

Page 9Page 17



 Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/1647/08

SITE ADDRESS: The Stables
60A Hainault Road 
Chigwell
Essex 
IG7 6QX 

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Chigwell Village 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey side extension and one window to kitchen. 

DECISION: Deferred

This item was deferred to seek clarification on representations received regarding this application. 

Page 10Page 18



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/1231/08

SITE ADDRESS: 20 Connaught Avenue 
Loughton
Essex 
IG10 4DS 

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing and erection of new five bedroom house 
with accommodation at basement level. 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 

3 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in first floor side elevations shall be fitted with obscured glass and have 
fixed frames up to a height of 1.7 metres above the finished floor level, and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 

4 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank elevations of the 
development hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any other order revoking, further amending 
or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of Part 1, 
Classes A and B shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the 
Local Planning Authority. 

6 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations which are audible at the 
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 11Page 19



7 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

8 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of 
landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the 
completion of the development hereby approved.  

The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of 
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a 
timetable for its implementation.  If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to 
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the 
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, 
and in writing. 

The statement must include details of all the means by which successful 
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting 
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant 
protection and aftercare.  It must also include details of the supervision of the 
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority. 

The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 

9 Prior to the first occupation of the dwelling hereby approved, a screen shall be 
erected to the side of the rear balcony, as shown on the approved plans.  A screen 
of the same height shall be retained in this position thereafter. 

10 Prior to commencement of development, details of levels shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing the levels of the site prior to 
development and the proposed levels of all ground floor slabs of buildings, roadways 
and accessways and landscaped areas.   The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with those approved details. 

11 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface 
materials for the front garden areas of hardsurfacing shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed surface treatment 
shall be completed prior to the first occupation of the development. 

12 No development shall take place until a Sustainability Report to achieve at least 
Level 3* of the Code for Sustainable Homes has been submitted to be approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The house shall not be occupied until it has 
been issued with a final Code certificate of compliance. 

Page 12Page 20



Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/1411/08

SITE ADDRESS: 2C Goldings Road 
Loughton
Essex 
IG10 2QN 

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Johns 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Replace existing garage and rear extension with two storey 
side extension and loft conversion with rear dormer to provide
1 no. one bedroom flat and 1 no. two bedroom flat. 

DECISION: Refused Permission 

REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

1 The proposal would result in an over-intensive use of the site that would be out of 
keeping with the predominant character of the surrounding area, setting an 
undesirable precedent for sub-division of properties into flats in this road, and result 
in loss of amenity to the occupants of neighbouring residential properties.  The 
proposal would therefore be contrary to policies DBE9 and DBE11 of the Adopted 
Local Plan and Alterations. 

Page 13Page 21



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/1703/08

SITE ADDRESS: Woodberrie House 
Woodbury Hill 
Loughton
Essex 
IG10 1JB 

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Johns 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: New porch to front and single storey side extension. (Revised 
application) 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 

3 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
/hedgerow protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree/hedgerow 
protection has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in 
writing.

The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees/hedgerow to be retained will not be harmed during the 
development, including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 

The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 

The trees/hedgerow must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement 
throughout the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given 
its prior written consent to any variation. 

Page 14Page 22



Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/1779/08

SITE ADDRESS: 9 - 11 High Beech Road 
Loughton
Essex 
IG10 4BN 

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Ground and first floor extensions to sides, first floor infill 
extension to rear, new roof and front elevation remodelling. 
(Resubmitted application) 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 

3 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in the first and second floor rear elevations shall be fitted with obscured 
glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7m above the internal floor level, and 
shall be permanently retained in that condition. 

4 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the first floor flank walls of the 
development hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 

5 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 

Page 15Page 23



6 Before the commencement of the development or any works on site, details of the 
landscaping of the site, including retention of trees and other natural features, shall 
be submitted in writing for the approval of the Local Planning Authority, and shall be 
carried out as approved. 

7 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of staff and visitors' vehicles. 

8 Prior to the commencement of the development, details illustrating the provision of 
secure covered bicycle and motorbike parking shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The parking shall be implemented in 
accordance with these agreed details and shall be provided prior to the first use of 
the offices and maintained on site thereafter unless the LPA gives its written consent 
to any variation. 

9 Provision shall be made for shower and changing facilities prior to first use of the 
premises hereby approved, the details of which shall have been previously 
submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The shower 
and changing facilities shall be implemented in accordance with these details and 
retained in situ thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA. 

10 Measures shall be taken to ensure that no surface water shall drain onto the 
highway.

11 Prior to the commencement of the development, the method of construction of the 
foundations shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority (LPA) The foundations shall be constructed in accordance with these 
approved details unless the LPA gives its written consent to any variation. 

12 The rating level of noise (as defined by BS4142:1997) emitted from any plant room 
and any air conditioning units shall not exceed 5db(A) above the prevailing 
background noise level. The measurement position and assessment shall be made 
according to BS4142:1997. 

13 Prior to the commencement of the development, a scheme that provides storage of 
refuse waste shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority (LPA). The scheme shall be carried out in accordance with these approved 
details prior to the occupation of the offices and shall be retained thereafter at all 
times unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA. 

14 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries 
and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the 
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

15 The use hereby approved shall not be commenced until details of a Green Travel 
Plan containing a travel to work car use and car parking arrangement strategy of the 
development as a whole has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The Plan shall comprise details to reduce car dependence and 
vehicle emissions and to establish and encourage the use of alternative transport 
modes of journeys to and from work and during working hours, including how to 

Page 16Page 24



deter visitors arriving and departing by motor car.  Details of the proposals shall 
include measures to secure increases in car sharing, public transport use, cycling 
and walking, proposals for car parking restrictions and controls and details of on-site 
facilities to promote alternative modes of travel to the site. The plan shall contain 
relevant surveys, publicity and marketing; review and monitoring mechanisms shall 
identify targets, timescales and phasing programmes and on-site management 
responsibilities. The plan shall be implemented as approved and be subject to 
annual review for the first 5 years. This shall be carried out in conjunction with the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Page 17Page 25



Report Item No: 9

APPLICATION No: EPF/1615/08

SITE ADDRESS: 160 Loughton Way  
Buckhurst Hill  
Essex  
IG9 6AR 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use from an A1 shop to A5 takeaway.(revised 
application) 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 The takeaway hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the hours of 
0900 to 2200 on Mondays to Thursdays and 0900 to 2300 on Fridays and 
Saturdays, and at no time on Sundays or Public/Bank Holidays. 

3 No development shall take place prior to submission and approval in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority of an appropriate mechanical extraction system to 
suppress and disperse cooking/food preparation fumes. The system shall be 
installed strictly in accordance with the approved details, be in full working order, 
and shall be operated and maintained in accordance with the manufacturer's 
instructions, and tested by and to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority's 
Environment and Neighbourhood Officer, prior to the commencement of the use.  It 
shall be in use at all times that the premises are open for business. 

4 Detailed drawings that show adequate provision for foul drainage from the kitchen 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Drains serving 
the kitchens in the development shall be fitted with a grease separator, as detailed in 
the building Regulations 2000, Approved Document H (Drainage and waste 
disposal), to comply with prEN 1825-1 and designed in accordance with prEN 1825-
2 (Installations for separation of grease) or other effective means of removal. The 
approved drainage shall be retained and maintained while the premises are in use. 

5 Prior to the premises being brought into use for the purpose hereby permitted, a 
scheme providing for the adequate storage of refuse from this use shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be 
carried out and thereafter retained at all times. 

Page 18Page 26



Report Item No: 10

APPLICATION No: EPF/1753/08

SITE ADDRESS: 102 - 104 Queen's Road 
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5BS 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing property and erection of new 
commercial offices and meeting hall. (Revised application) 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

The Committee’s attention was drawn to a letter enclosing a petition of 24 signatures dated 
12/10/08.

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 

3 Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such 
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and 
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and 
maintained in the agreed positions. 

4 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in all flank walls shall be fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames, 
and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 

5 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the development 
hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

6 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order) no enclosure or balcony shall be 
formed at any time on any part of the roof of the development hereby approved 
without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 19Page 27



7 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 

8 Before the commencement of the development or any works on site, details of the 
landscaping of the site, including retention of trees and other natural features, shall 
be submitted in writing for the approval of the Local Planning Authority, and shall be 
carried out as approved. 

9 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of staff and visitors vehicles. 

10 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface 
materials for the driveway and parking area shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed surface treatment shall be 
completed prior to the first occupation of the development. 

11 The meeting hall on the ground floor shall be retained for community uses as laid 
out in Class D1 of the Uses Classes Order 2005 and for no other use. 

12 The D1 use hereby permitted shall not be open to staff/customers/ members of the 
public outside the hours of 0800 to 2200 on Mondays to Sundays. 

13 Prior to the commencement of the development, details illustrating the provision of 
secure covered bicycle and motorbike parking shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The parking shall be implemented in 
accordance with these agreed details and shall be provided prior to the first use of 
the offices and maintained on site thereafter unless the LPA gives its written consent 
to any variation. 

14 Provision shall be made for shower and changing facilities prior to first use of the 
premises hereby approved, the details of which shall have been previously 
submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The shower 
and changing facilities shall be implemented in accordance with these details and 
retained in situ thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA. 

Page 20Page 28



15 The use hereby approved shall not be commenced until details of a Green Travel 
Plan containing a travel to work car use and car parking arrangement strategy of the 
development as a whole has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The Plan shall comprise details to reduce car dependence and 
vehicle emissions and to establish and encourage the use of alternative transport 
modes of journeys to and from work and during working hours, including how to 
deter visitors arriving and departing by motor car.  Details of the proposals shall 
include measures to secure increases in car sharing, public transport use, cycling 
and walking, proposals for car parking restrictions and controls and details of on-site 
facilities to promote alternative modes of travel to the site. The plan shall contain 
relevant surveys, publicity and marketing; review and monitoring mechanisms shall 
identify targets, timescales and phasing programmes and on-site management 
responsibilities. The plan shall be implemented as approved and be subject to 
annual review for the first 5 years. This shall be carried out in conjunction with the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Page 21Page 29



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH 

Date: 5 November 2008 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE

1. EPF/1763/08 Brook House Cottage, 

High Road, 

Chigwell 

Refuse Permission 33 

2. EPF/1794/08 Highview Court, 20 High Road, 

Loughton 

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions) 

38 

3. EPF/1647/08 The Stables, 60A Hainault Road, 

Chigwell 

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions) 

42 

4. EPF/1650/08 M11 Motorway Service Area, 

Roding Lane, 

Chigwell 

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions) 

46 

5. EPF/1750/08 29 Retreat Way, 

Chigwell 

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions) 

55 

6. EPF/1780/08 45 Hillcrest Road, 

Loughton 

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions) 

59 

7. EPF/1807/08 122 High Road, 

Loughton 

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions) 

64 

8. EPF/1884/08 T11 Site, 

Langston Road, 

Loughton 

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions) 

68 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Item No: 1 
 

APPLICATION No: EPF/1763/08 
 

SITE ADDRESS: Brook House Cottage 
High Road 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6PX 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs Margaret Mackenzie 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/39/88 
 
T1 Horse Chestnut - Remove 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 Insufficient information has been has been provided to justify the felling of this tree 
which is in a Conservation Area, contrary to policy LL9 and HC6 of the Council's 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
This application is before this Committee since it is Council policy to present all applications to fell 
trees before the elected members. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
T1. Horse chestnut. Fell and replace. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
This 16 metre tall tree stands in front of a converted stable block domestic dwelling at a distance of 
approximately 3 metres from the corner of the building. It is surrounded on two sides by a  dividing 
brick wall to the side, which encloses a courtyard beyond and the front boundary wall to Chigwell 
High Road. The area surrounding the tree is made up of gravel and forms the open drive and 
parking area for both the cottage and Brook House; a listed building within the Chigwell 
Conservation Area. This large spreading tree contributes significantly to the green character of this 
locality and stands out as the most important mature chestnut tree within the immediate vicinity.  

Relevant History: 
 
TPO/EPF/39/88 was served following an official notice given by the tree owner of his intention to 
fell a tree within a Conservation Area. The Order was confirmed despite an objection from the tree 
owner, who felt the tree had out grown its position and had caused cracking to both his garage 
floor and the yard by its roots. 
 

Page 33



In 1988, the water supply authority investigated the cause of the saturated condition of the areas 
of the yard of Brook House Cottage, previously thought to be due to leaking drains. The 
investigation discovered a leaking water main valve, which discounted the tree’s action on drains 
on that occasion. 
 
TRE/EPF/23/95 was granted permission to reduce the tree by up to 50% in order that the 
overhanging branch problem, given as reasons for the works, was substantially alleviated. 
 
TRE/EPF/1104/03 allowed repeat reduction works and a 60% thinning out of the crown.  
 
Repairs to part of the existing drainage system were undertaken in 2004. These repairs consisted 
of relining the old pipes between the manhole cover in the courtyard and the man hole in the front 
of the main grounds, where root infestation was present.  Root pruning to remove a large surface 
root was also carried out at around this time.  
 
Relevant Policies: 
 
LL9: The Council will not give consent to fell a tree protected by a Tree Preservation Order unless 
it is satisfied that this is necessary and justified.  Any such consent will be conditional upon 
appropriate replacement of the tree. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Introduction 
 
The application is made on the basis that the tree is said to be damaging the drain running 
beneath the tree and an inspection chamber at the junction of two drain pipes for storm water and 
foul drainage respectively.  
 
The issue is whether or not the tree’s removal is justified and necessary due to the alleged 
damage caused to the drains and inspection chamber. 
 
Considerations 
 

• Evidence to support the proposal. 
 
The allegation of root damage to the drains around the tree that has been submitted with this 
application is not supported by any clear technical evidence to show the tree as the primary cause 
of damage to the drains and subsequent wetting and softening of the soil around and below the 
property foundations.  
 
There has been a history of drain related problems associated with the roots of this tree; described 
above. On previous occasions the council’s response has aimed to balance the problems caused 
by the tree against its high amenity value. The view is that repairs to pipelines and inspection 
chambers would be necessary to drain systems of this age with or without the tree present. Old 
drains do become cracked and prone to leaks over time, which attracts roots to the area. No 
information has been put forward to show that the four inch diameter  salt glazed pipeline is a new 
system and this has been penetrated by the tree roots.  Therefore, unless it can be demonstrated  
that all other means of repairs are to be  discounted it is reasonable to expect that technical 
solutions remain available without the need to remove the tree. 
 

• Tree condition, life expectancy and  
 
The tree appears to be in generally good condition with a life expectancy of at least 20 years. The 
applicant’s agent understands that the tree is suffering from ‘Bleeding Canker’ but does not 

Page 34



support this claim with any form of a professional report. There is evidence of staining on some 
branches within the crown, which indicates the presence of a pathogen. This, however, frequently 
occurs on this species and, in this instance, does not present an immediate threat to the tree’s 
long term health. A more detailed tree inspection to quantify the risk presented by such staining 
would need to be produced before more weight can be given to this issue. 
 

• Amenity value and Article 5 certification. 
 

The tree stands prominently at the front corner of the property and complements the Brook House; 
a Grade II listed building and the buildings associated with it. It has an attractive open form and 
stands out as a very significant tree on this site. It forms part of a varied line of  mature  trees, 
which occupy dominant positions at the front boundaries of the houses along this main road. Its 
removal would be a great loss in terms of public landscape amenity. 
 
Should members agree to refuse permission for the removal of this tree the reasons for issuing an  
Article 5 Certificate would be given as: 
 
1.  The tree’s outstanding dominant and well shaped form. 
2.  The positive contribution it makes to the Street Scene of this, the Chigwell    Conservation 

Area along the High Road. 
3.  The important presence it has in relation to the Grade II listed building, Brook House and 

the surrounding buildings on the site. 
  
Conclusion: 

 
The tree is vigorous and highly prominent in the Conservation Area. Details of the damage caused 
are unsupported in the application and could be resolved by repairs normally expected for drain 
systems of this age.  The tree’s landscape importance outweighs the problems encountered in the 
application. Therefore, the felling of the tree is not considered justified or necessary.  
 
It is recommended to refuse permission to this application on the grounds that the problems 
suffered do not justify the need to remove the tree. The proposal therefore runs contrary to Local 
Plan Landscape Policy LL9. 
 
It is recommended that  an a certificate under article 5 is issued with the refusal notice. 
 
It is recommended that, in the event of members granting permission to fell this tree, a condition 
be attached requiring the replanting of a suitable replacement at an agreed location on the site. 

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 

CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL commented that it would take the advice of the council tree officer 
to the application. 
 
COLIN GAME OF MILLARD & PARTNERS: CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS  
produced a short report supporting the application to remove the tree. He expresses concerns 
about     ‘ the damage being repeatedly caused to the drain runs immediately adjacent to the 
property by the growth and penetration of roots from the Horse Chestnut tree.’ In his opinion, the 
repeated damage ‘will eventually cause a softening/ contamination of the soil around and below 
the existing property foundations, which will quite possibly lead to settlement of the foundations 
and damage to the property.’ 
 
MR A. CONNOLLY OF ARDENE PROPERTY CONSULTANTS wrote a letter supporting the 
application on behalf of a Mr. and Mrs. Stevenson of Farthings, 78 High Road, whose 

Page 35



neighbouring property has linked drain runs. He cited a drain record on DVD, showing root 
infestation. It was not made clear whether these roots had been identified as those from the Horse 
Chestnut or a preserved Pine tree on their own land. This photographic evidence has not been 
made available. 

 
 
 
 

Page 36



 
 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
23 

 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 

 
 

49.7m

East
Cottage

14

1

16

22

16

17

Court

24a

72

24

El Sub Sta
Grange

6

82

80

Brook Lodge

78

Brook House

4

2

4

88

10

8

Playing Field

Posts

HIGH MEAD

H
IG

H 
RO

AD

HI
GH

 M
EA

D

*

*

*
*

*
*

*

*
*

*

*
*

*

*

*
*

****
**

*

**
*

*
*

*

**

*
*

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 

Application Number: EPF/1763/08 

Site Name: Brook House Cottage, High Road 
Chigwell  IG7 6PX 

Scale of Plot: 1:2500

Page 37



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1794/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Highview Court  

20 High Road 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4QZ 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Philip Macaree 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/24/88/A1 
 
T1 Sycamore - Fell to ground level 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The work authorised by this consent shall be carried out under the direct supervision 
of the Local Planning Authority, who shall receive in writing, 5 working days notice of 
such works. 
 
Reason:-  To comply with the duties indicated in Section 197 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 so as to ensure that the works are carried out in a 
satisfactory manner, and that the Local Planning Authority is given sufficient notice 
to supervise the work. 
 

2 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one month of the 
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority.  If within a period of five years from the 
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 
Reason:-  To comply with the duties indicated in Section 197 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, so as to ensure that the amenity value of the existing 
tree or trees is maintained by the provision of adequate replacement. 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since it is Council policy to present all applications to fell 
trees before the elected members. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
T1.Sycamore. Fell and replace. 

Page 38



 
Description of Site: 
 
The tree stands close to the side boundary fence of this site, opposite the main entrance of the 
eastern apartment block, which forms part of a pair of mid rise residential flat blocks fronting onto 
the High Road. The site has an area of closely mown grass, which extends to the front boundary 
between the flats and car parking. This forms the landscaped garden area and is populated by 
ornamental flowering trees and shrubs.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
There are no records on file of pruning operations to this tree, which was included as part of the 
area designated as A1, listed as ‘various trees of whatever species’ in TPO/EPF/24/88. The Order 
forms a protective crescent around Richmond Court and Highview Court. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations: LL9 Felling of preserved trees 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main reasons put forward with this application are the following: 
 

• Poor location of the tree. 
• Potential risk of structural failure from old pruning points. 
 

The main planning considerations are: 
 

• Visual amenity of the tree 
• Planning issues 

Location of the tree: 
 
The applicant lists the position of the tree as problematic. It stands next to a bin store at a 
narrowed point, where the access drive passes beside the building. 
 
Some lower limbs have been crudely removed to alleviate the pressure on vehicles passing this 
point. In its current form it does not extend excessively into the path of vehicles or against the 
building. However, the relationship between the tree and its immediate surroundings : the tarmac 
drive, kerb line, bin store and flat block is not a complementary one. The kerb stones and the 
tarmac surfacing have become cracked and distorted. The tree dominates the flat block entrance 
and litters it with honeydew sap, leaf debris and small deadwood fragments. 
 
A tree of this species would normally need a considerable amount of space to be allowed to grow 
to its natural size. Historically, there have been repeated reduction works to the tree to contain its 
development in its constrained surroundings. The conifer hedge is beginning to outgrow the tree 
and performs a more effective screening function than the  tree.  

Potential risk of branch failure: 
 
The tree has many vertical, regrown stems from about 5 metres in height, which have developed 
following heavy pruning. The applicant states that there is a risk of  these congested, regenerated 
stems to fail. Decay is visible on two stems at this height. The poorly structured multi -stemmed 
base has several trunks growing closely to each other. These will exert pressure on each other as 

Page 39



they continue to thicken with age. The scarring visible from previous lower stem pruning shows 
pockets of stem decay. This could result in whole stem failure with  more serious  consequences. 
A risk does exist of branch drop. 

Visual amenity 
 
This tree stands close to a line of conifers, which partially obscures views of the tree. The flat block 
also obstructs views of the tree. It can be seen when standing in the road directly opposite the 
drive. Its amenity value is modest and its loss would be barely noticed. 
 
Planning issues 
 
The tree was protected as part of an area order of boundary trees, good and bad around Highview 
and Richmond Court, to conceal views of the new development at Nafferton Rise. The tree would 
not merit preservation on the grounds of its poor form and low visual amenity.  
 
The removal of this poorly sited, self sown tree will provide a good opportunity to secure a more 
appropriate tree in a prominent position within the front garden area of the site. This would provide 
long term landscape benefits to the street scene of the High Road.  

 
Conclusion: 
 
The tree is a poor example with low public amenity. It could be replaced with a better tree in a 
more visible location. While it might not be strictly necessary to remove the tree, a landscape gain 
can be achieved with new planting and therefore it appears that felling is justifiable, in this case. 
 
It is recommended to grant permission to this application on the grounds that the tree is of poor 
quality and low visual amenity, which  justify its removal. The proposal therefore accords with 
Local Plan Landscape Policy LL9. 

 
A condition requiring the replacement of this tree and a condition requiring prior notice of the works 
to remove it must be attached to the decision notice, in the event of members agreeing to allow the 
felling. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
Loughton Town Council objected to the application. 
 
Loughton Residents Association objected on the grounds that there seems no justification in the 
planning application. 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
Report Item No: 3 

33.2m

35.1m

39.0m

43

3

15 16

1

50

19 20

13 14

1

11 12

2

97

9 10

91

89

21 22

23 24

25 26

27 28

17 18

4

Court

20

Richmond

95

1 2

22

Highview

3 4

Court

5 6

Court

29 to 34

41

Grange

44

7 8

42

35 to 40

18

10

16

25

39

6a

1

10

2 1

13

9

12

8 7

14
11

3

2

10

8

2

32

42

3b

3a

11

50
a

52

Carlton Ho

1 to 52

LB

AL
GER

S
C

AL
GER

S 
M

EA
D

HIG
H R

OAD

NAFFENTON RISE

*
*

*

* **
**

**
*

*
*

*
* *

*

*
**

**

*

*
*

*

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 

Application Number: EPF/1794/08 

Site Name: Highview Court, 20 High Road 
Loughton  IG10 4QZ 

Scale of Plot: 1:1250

Page 41



Report Item No 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1647/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: The Stables  

60A Hainault Road 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6QX 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Miss Lucy-Jane Cooper 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey side extension and one window to kitchen. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
Reason:  To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended).  
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 
 
Reason:-  To safeguard the visual amenities of the locality.  
 

 
This item was deferred at the last meeting of this Committee held on 24 September 2008 as 
there was a concern that not all representations had been reported.  Officers have since 
checked all representations received and at the time of preparing this agenda, no more 
than the two representations summarised at the end of this report were received. 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The proposal is for the addition of a second bedroom (4m x 2m) on the northern side of the 
property with a window facing westwards. The roof would be pitched to match the existing 
structure. The proposed materials shall also match the existing building. The proposal also 
includes the addition of a kitchen window to the eastern side of the property.  
 
Description of Site: 
 
The proposal site is a detached property which is located down a track off Hainault Road. The 
property is bordered by the track on its southern side and this borders onto the rail track serving 

Page 42



Chigwell Station. The front of the property faces westward and is bordered by the gardens of a row 
of houses. The eastern boundary is an existing field and the northern boundary is where the 
property’s garden meets the garden of 40b. This boundary has a number of mature trees.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1305/85 - Outline application for four bedroom house. Refuse Permission – 06/01/86 
 
EPF/0638/88 - Outline application for 4 Bed- room house(revised proposal). Dismissed – 15/03/89 
 
EPF/1111/02 - Erection of stable block. Grant Permission (with conditions) – 30/10/02 
 
EPF/0027/05 - Change of use of stable to single storey detached dwelling. Grant Permission (with 
conditions) – 30/03/05 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Policy DBE3 – Design in Urban Areas 
Policy DBE9 – Loss of Amenity 
Policy DBE10 – Design of Residential Extension  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to consider are any potential loss of amenity, and the design of the extension in 
relation to the existing building and its setting.  
 
Impact on Appearance of Area 
 
Policy DBE3 states that new development will ensure individual identity and character is promoted. 
This is supported by policy DBE10 which states that a residential extension should “complement, 
and where appropriate enhance” the streetscene and existing building. 
 
This application proposes the use of a hipped roof and materials to match the existing structure. 
The windows are also in keeping with what currently exists. It is therefore felt that the proposal 
would not be out of keeping with the existing structure and would have minimal impact on the 
appearance of the area.  
 
Impact on Neighbours 
 
Policy DBE9 requires that residential extensions do not lead to loss of neighbour amenity. The 
property has no immediate neighbours on its eastern boundary and is bordered by an access track 
and then the rail line on the southern side. In relation to the northern boundary the proposal site is 
bordered by a large detached property. Due to the positioning of garden areas the southern 
elevation of the neighbouring property and the proposed extension would be approx 31m apart. 
There is also some tree and hedgerow cover. As there are also no proposed windows on the 
elevation facing this property there is not felt to be any significant loss of amenity. The property is 
bordered to the western side by a number of gardens/rear elevations of properties facing on to 
Hainault Road. It is proposed that a window on the extension would face these properties. This 
window would be positioned 33m approx from the nearest rear elevation. The boundaries are also 
separated by a solid wooden fence. As the proposed window is on the ground floor it is not felt that 
it would lead to any significant loss of amenity to neighbouring properties than the existing front 
windows.  
 
Conclusion: 
 

Page 43



As there is minimal loss to neighbouring amenity or impact on the appearance of the area it is 
recommended that this proposal should be APPROVED (with conditions); 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
CHIGWELL TOWN COUNCIL: Objection.  Cause loss of amenity to No54 and original application 
recognised the need for strict control on this site.  
 
40B HAINAULT ROAD: Objection. The proposed extension will bring the building closer to 40B’s 
fence.  
 
                 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 44



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

52.7m

48.5m

MP 7.25

36.3m

43.0m

40.2m

MP 7.5

56.4m

FW

Ward Bdy

Und

FF

FW

CR

FF

U
nd

91

52

93

10
6

9

1

5

11
4

El Sub Sta

6

122

95

48

40a32

19

40b

30

60

40

6 60a

Court

Council Offices
Parish

Victory

Hall

Library

Dolphin

1

110

Club

11

Chigwell Station

(London Transport)
102

23Bank

11

0b

0

Br
oo

k
Pa

ra
de

17

Parkview

1

49

72a

74

Savill's Cottages

72

72b
72c

4

Eastdene

64

70

1

C
ottage

Cottage
Holly

Lim
e Tree

35

31 33

Nursery

Track

SL

Chigwell Station

Track

Playground

TC
B

H
AIN

A
U

LT R
O

A
D

The Chase

THE CHASE

STATION ROAD

H
A

IN
A

U
LT R

O
A

D

H
IG

H

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

3 

Application Number: EPF/1647/08 

Site Name: The Stables, 60A Hainault Road 
Chigwell, IG7 6QX 

Scale of Plot: 1/2500

Page 45



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1650/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: M11 Motorway Service Area 

Roding Lane 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Olympic Delivery Authority 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Construction of a compound for the undertaking of security 
checks on, and controlling the movement of, heavy goods 
vehicles. Works to include change levels, construction of a 
drainage pond, hard surfacing, perimeter fencing, and 
associated structures. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 Unless otherwise stated in the Remediation Strategy in para.4.2 of the ODA 
Planning Statement dated August 2008 for the site and as indicated on drawing no. 
A12095-C-116 Rev.C, all buildings and structures hereby permitted shall be 
demolished and the materials removed from site before 1 July 2014. Materials 
removed shall include the excavated top soil on the western part of the site, as 
shown on drawing no. A12095-C-103, to be  returned to and spread on the eastern 
part of the site in two 150mm layers.     
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 
 

2 The use hereby permitted shall be discontinued on or before the 31st December 
2013. 
 
Reason: A temporary permission is granted due to the short term need for the 
Logistics Centre for the delivery of the Olympic and Paralympic Games. 
 

3 A scheme for the restoration of the site, which includes methodology and seed 
specification, shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority 
before the use hereby permitted ceases; this scheme shall be implemented before 1 
July 2014. 
 
Reason: To achieve a satisfactory standard of restoration in the interests of amenity 
to conserve and enhance natural features, the character of the area and to mitigate 
environmental losses due to the development. 
 

4 All construction / demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes 
deliveries and other commercial vehicles movements to and from the site) shall take 

Page 46



please on site between the hours of 06.00 to 20.00 hours on weekdays and 
Saturdays, and at no time during Sundays and Bank Holidays unless prior 
agreement has been obtained in writing from the local planning authority. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the local area from undue noise and disturbance.  
 

5 No burning of materials shall take place on site throughout the demolition and 
construction phases of the development. 
 
Reason: In the interest of the amenities of neighbouring properties and pollution 
prevention. 
 

6 All reasonable steps to minimise dust emissions from the site shall be employed 
throughout the demolition and construction phase of the development. 
 
Reason: In the interest of the amenities of neighbouring properties and pollution 
prevention. 
 

7 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
demolition and construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which 
shall be submitted and agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  The 
facilities shall be installed prior to commencement of any works on the site and shall 
be used to by all vehicles leaving the site during site preparation and construction 
works. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety 
 

8 Development shall be in accordance with details of the surface water drainage 
works shown in drawing no A12095-C-105 unless otherwise submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Authority.   
 
Reason: To ensure proper drainage of the site.  
 

9 The development shall not be brought into use unless / until, the merge, diverge and 
weaving length arrangements serving the development directly to and from M11 
have been completed in accordance with the approved in principle outline Option 2 
layout in Pell Frischmann report R10295T11-A 'Departure from Standard Mitigation 
proposals' and constructed to the specification of the Highways Agency and to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highways 
Agency and open to traffic, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority in consultation with the Highways Agency. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety 
 

10 No traffic from the development (including construction traffic) is to use M11 J5 until 
a traffic signal scheme for the M11 J5 / Chigwell Lane junction as shown in outline 
on drawing no D12095T521 has been constructed and open to traffic and a Stage 3 
Completion Certificate is obtained, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority in consultation with Essex County Council and the Highways 
Agency. Before the traffic light signal scheme operates it shall be linked via MOVA 
(Microscopic Optimised Vehicle Actuation) to the existing Langston Road signalised 
junction, to the north.  
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety 
  

Page 47



 

11 The screen (A) shown on plan number A12095-C-102 dated 07.08.08 titled 'ODA 
logistics centre 1 - M11 Perimeter Barrier Layout' shall be erected in accordance 
with detail outlined in the construction management plan clm-d0601-pln 0004 or any 
subsequent agreed plan before commencement of the use of the site.  The fence 
will be maintained in accordance with the standard requirements. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety 
 

12 Before commencement of the development hereby approved, measures to secure 
restorative improvements to Andrews Pond at Roding Valley Meadow Nature 
Reserve, located in the vicinity of the west part of the site, shall be agreed by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To improve the ecology of the area and reduce existing surface run-off from 
the motorway.   
 

13 Details of any lighting on the western half of the site, west of the M11 motorway, 
shall be submitted and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority before work 
commences on site. Should lighting be necessary it shall only be implemented on 
site in accordance with the agreed details. 
 
Reason: To reduce impact on habitat in areas of woodland and river valley habitat, 
west of this part of the site.  
 

 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application for development of a significant 
scale and/or wider concern and is recommended for approval (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A 
(c) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The construction of a temporary Logistics Centre is required to facilitate the 2012 Olympic and 
Paralympic Games.  The development comprises the construction of a compound for the 
undertaking of security checks on and controlling the movement of Heavy Goods Vehicles.   
 
Works are to include: change in levels; hard surfacing; construction of administration building and 
structure for security equipment; storage of topsoil (west of M11); erection of perimeter fencing; 
erection of lighting columns; construction of drainage works; erection of signage; and associated 
works and a remediation strategy comprising of site restoration works following the cessation of 
operation at the site.   
 
The use is for a temporary period ceasing on the 31st December 2013. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The total area of the application site is 8.17 ha; divided, more or less centrally, by the M11 into two 
sub areas.  The sub area to the east of the M11 is approximately 3.5 ha and the sub area to the 
west of the M11 (which will remain largely undeveloped) is approximately 4.5 ha.   
 
Access to the site is currently controlled by perimeter fencing, and is gained via restricted slip 
roads from the north bound and south bound M11 only.  The site is owned by and has remained in 
use by the Highways Agency since the construction of the M11.   

Page 48



 
Currently the site is predominantly vacant grassland and scrub with the exception of an Essex 
Police Control Centre located on the northern boundary of the western sub area; it has been 
agreed that police operations from this Control Centre should not be affected by the Logistics 
Centre.  In addition to this there is a small area utilised as a compound by the Highways Agency 
on the western sub-section. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
The site was earmarked as a potential location for a Motorway Service Area (MSA) during the 
construction of the M11 motorway when it was expected that the M11 was to extend further into 
central London.  However the proposed section of the M11 from Hackney Wick to South Woodford 
through Leyton, Leytonstone and Snaresbrook was never built as part of the M11 and the 
motorway consequently starts at junction 4.  This negated the need for an MSA in this location at 
that time.  The site has remained under the land ownership of the Highways Agency since the 
construction of the M11.   
 
Policies Applied: 
 
National Policy 
PPS1: Delivering Sustainable Communities (2005) 
PPS25: Development and Flood-risk (2006) 
PPG13: Transport (2001) 
PPS9: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation (2005) 
PPS7: Sustainable Development in Rural Areas (2004) 
PPG2: Green Belt (1995) 
 
East of England Plan 
T1: Regional Transport Strategy Objectives and Outcomes 
T6: Strategic and Regional Road Networks 
SS1: Achieving Sustainable Development 
SS7: Green Belt 
 
Epping Forest Local Plan and Alterations  
Policy NC1 – Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) 
Policy NC4 – Established Features of Local Interest 
Policy DBE9 – Protection of the Enjoyment of Dwellings and their Amenity Spaces 
Policy GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
Policy GB7A – Conspicuous Development 
Policy LL1 – Protection of the Rural Landscapes 
Policy LL2 – Planning Permission for Development in the countryside 
Policy LL3 – Developments on the Edges of Settlements 
Policy LL10 – Landscaping - protecting existing features 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues that arise with this application are deemed to be the following: 
Greenbelt, Flood-risk, Ecology, Amenity and Highways. 
 
1.  Green Belt - Principle of Development 
 
The carrying out of development, including engineering and other operations and the making of 
material changes in the use of land, is considered to be inappropriate development, except in very 
special circumstances, unless it maintains the openness of land and does not conflict with the 
purposes of including land in the Green Belt.  The applicants demonstrate within the application 

Page 49



material the very special circumstances that apply to this development in the Green Belt, how the 
circumstances outweigh the harm and, therefore, why the development should be permitted. 
 
The benefits of the M11 Chigwell site are its capability to control the movement of delivery vehicles 
close to the Olympic Site and its locational advantages of proximity to the Motorway, proximity to 
the Olympic Site, good road links from other parts of the country to the Olympic Site, location 
outside the urban area and its minimal impact on local communities and other road users. 
 
The Olympic Delivery Authority (ODA) had declared a target of 50% of materials and equipment 
(by weight) to be delivered by sustainable transport methods, (rail and water) to reduce the impact 
on the environment. Even with the target of 50% of materials being delivered by rail or water, the 
expectation is for up to 600 road delivery vehicles per day. The strategy is to smooth the flow 
through the day thus reducing peaks and to avoid vehicles reaching the Olympic Site that are not 
authorised to enter. 
 
It is considered that there is both a need to provide the facility and that the application site 
represents the most appropriate option.  The proposed development of the logistics facilities is 
both critical and essential for the delivery of 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games and therefore 
the development of the Logistics Centre (the subject of this application) is considered to be of 
national importance and the reason that very special circumstances apply. 
 
2. Green Belt - Visual Impact  
 
In terms of visual impact upon the greenbelt, the treed bank around the site is to be retained and 
this provides an effective and natural visual barrier, even to the proposed 20m high lighting 
columns proposed for the site. This part of the M11 is generally not lit, but lighting along the centre 
of a motorway is not uncommon close to urban areas and therefore is acceptable for the duration 
of the planning permission.  The proposed development has been designed using sympathetic 
materials and colours. The proposed use of green Paladin Fencing for the external perimeter of 
the Logistics Centre will ensure that this has limited prominence and will not be an incongruous 
feature within this area of countryside. 
 
Furthermore, the grassed earth bunds which separate the site from the wider landscape and the 
presence of the perimeter tree belts ensure that there is limited intervisibility with the local 
settlements, Chigwell Conservation Area or the recreational routes which pass through the area.  
Much of the land that adjoins the site is at a higher level and used for outdoor recreational 
purposes, even from Roding Lane to the south of the main site there is limited visibility, owing to 
the heavy screening around the site.   
 
There are no objections raised with regard to the application site falling within the greenbelt, or the 
potential visual impact of the scheme, that would be limited to the M11 road. 
 
3. Flood-risk 
 
The surface water system incorporates attenuation storage and interceptors; and foul water 
sewage will be addressed through a self contained water treatment system.  The Environment 
Agency (EA) has no objections with regard to drainage into the River Roding.  The site is 
downstream from the Roding Valley Meadows SSSI site and is shown to have no negative impact 
upon this.  
 
The EA’s original objections to the scheme have been satisfactorily addressed through the 
submission of an addendum to the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA).  The amended drainage 
solution which now forms part of this planning application provides attenuation via a dry pond to be 
located on the North West side of the M11.  Legacy arrangements include the retention of the dry 
pond subject to agreement by the landowners. Topsoil will replace the concrete hard standing and 

Page 50



drains will be infilled; the gradients on the southeast part of the site will be reduced compared to 
current gradients, so that some betterment to surface runoff rates will be retained, whether the 
pond is retained or not.  The FRA (with the addendum) meets the requirements of Government 
advice in PPS25.   
 
4. Ecology 
 
Whilst the site itself is not covered by any statutory or non-statutory wildlife designation, that part 
of the site west of the M11 adjoins a Local Nature Reserve (Roding Valley Meadows), the northern 
part of which is designated as a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). The basis to the 
designation is its species rich grassland comprising traditionally managed hay meadows, flood 
meadows and marsh.  
 
In terms of impact upon the environment, the treed bank around the site is to be retained and this 
provides an effective and natural visual barrier. The site will be returned to a natural state after 
cessation of the operation in December 2013 in accordance with the remediation strategy.  This 
will involve the removal of structures, break up and disposal of the concrete surfacing and seeding 
the eastern part of the site with wildflower/grass seed mix of British Seed Houses type WFG 6 or 
approved equivalent.  
 
Natural England raises no objections in respect of either statutorily designated sites or legally 
protected species, nor does the Council’s landscape officer. As a precaution scrub clearance on 
the site will be scheduled for outside the breeding season. 
 
With regard to deer, it is not considered that the development of the site will have any effect on 
deer crossing the motorway. At present any crossings are likely to be either across the motorway 
or using the slip road as although the culvert could be crossed (i.e. muntjac can swim) its enclosed 
nature would probably deter most individuals. It is unlikely that muntjac deer are present in large 
numbers. It is likely that the deer using the area are mainly centred within the woodland that is to 
the north and west of the site venturing onto the proposed development area occasionally to feed. 
It is unlikely that muntjac cross the motorway with any frequency as they are a relatively shy 
species and the habitat to the east of the M11 is not of particularly high quality for this species. 
 
Essex Wildlife Trust raised no objections to the application, furthermore the ODA are considering a 
contribution towards restorative works to Andrews Pond at Roding Valley.  Works include 
replacing the dam, which is leaking badly and causing erosion, de-silting and improving the 
existing pond area and enlarging the inlet ditch to be able to plant a reedbed, with the hope of 
cleaning some of the oil from the road run-off before it reaches the pond and subsequently the 
River Roding.  The pond is a valuable resource for school groups visiting the site. 
 
5. Amenity 
 
The nearby properties and conservation area at Roding Lane are screened by tall hedgerows and 
trees lining the road. The few viewpoints out of the road are impeded by the mature treebelt 
bordering the proposed site. The tree belt and hedgerows consist of coniferous and deciduous 
species and are deemed to provide screening throughout the year.   
 
The construction phase is likely to be of significant duration and whilst some distance away on 
higher ground, it is close enough to neighbouring residential premises to warrant the inclusion of a 
number of conditions to control any disturbance. Conditions to restrict bonfires and hours of 
operation, and require wheel-cleaning are to be added to any permission during the construction 
stage to ensure amenity is protected.   
 
Views available to the limited range and number of potential visual receptors located along Roding 
Lane are short range, being restricted and framed by the mature and tall roadside hedgerows and 

Page 51



hedgerow trees.  Where rare opportunities for views across or through the adjacent vegetation 
cover exist, views westwards are restricted by built form and woodland belts within the intervening 
area.  As such, the proposed Logistics Centre would not be visible from any point along the lane, 
and the proposed development would not alter the existing visual context. Views into the site from 
the motorway will be limited to the 20m lighting columns, owing to the provision of a 3m high 
timber fence along the western elevation.  
 
No objections have been received regarding amenity. 
 
6. Highways  
 
The Logistics Centre, operated for goods/delivery vehicles, has little traffic impact on the 
surrounding highway network. In 2011, it is predicted that traffic congestion is likely to exist at 
Junction 5 M11/Chigwell Lane in the PM peak but this is largely as a result of the growth in 
background traffic rather than the Logistics Centre traffic. 
 
The submitted Transport Assessment indicates that 20% of the HGV movements to the proposed 
site will originate from the south. This means that some HGV’s will travel northbound on the M11 
to junction 5 where they will cross Chigwell Lane and rejoin the M11 to go southbound. The 
existing priority junction here has a central reservation of approximately 4m width which is 
inadequate to allow HGV’s to safely wait to cross the dual carriageway of Chigwell Lane and then 
turn right before driving onto the loop slip road and rejoin the M11 southbound.    
 
Junction improvements at Chigwell Lane (signals at the junction to control the northbound slip road 
and to facilitate heavy goods vehicles leaving the slip road) will offset this and are to be provided 
by the ODA in conjunction with the Langston Road traffic light signalling improvements paid for 
from highway contributions gained from planning permissions granted in Langston Road by this 
Committee over the last 4 years. Implementation of new traffic signals will require limited physical 
works and provide acceptable traffic operational conditions.   
 
The fence that runs along side the M11 will be a 3m high solid wooden fence in line with the 
Highways Agency’s requirements. Check-gates are proposed at the entrance together with 
bollards, kerbs and other traffic controlling measures. They have been kept to a minimum to 
ensure safe and efficient flows into the site.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
The Olympic development is a project of national importance and the proposed Logistics facility is 
integral to its delivery. It will help aid sustainable economic development and accords with the 
aims of sustainable transport. The impact on landscape and environment is deemed to be 
negligible There will be no significant impact on wildlife and nature conservation, nor cultural 
heritage.  
 
The development accords with the aims and objectives of PPS1, PPG2, PPS7, PPG13, PPG16, 
and PPS25 which are significant material considerations that weigh in its favour.  
 
It is considered there are significant material considerations that weigh in favour of the 
development and that the application proposals comply with Government Guidance and policies in 
the East of England Plan and the Local Plan.  
 
The local benefits are that firstly, there will be a traffic light signalised junction at the end of the slip 
road off the M11 to control traffic crossing the central reservation of Chigwell Lane, which currently 
relies on traffic waiting for breaks in the two-way cross movement of vehicles along Chigwell Lane 
and then there is only room for one vehicle at a time in the central reservation. Secondly, the ODA 

Page 52



will provide a contribution towards restorative works to Andrews Pond at Roding Valley for the 
Essex Wildlife Trust. 
 
It is for these reasons that the application is recommended for approval subject to conditions. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL. No objections 
 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY. No objections. The Environment Agency originally expressed 
objections, objecting on the grounds of an absence of acceptable Flood Risk Assessment (FRA.) 
They advised that, in order to resolve this, the FRA must show how SUDS will be maximised on 
site, with any obstacle to their use clearly justified. It should also show how it would be feasible to 
balance surface water runoff to the Greenfield run off rate for all events up to the 1 in 100 year 
storm. Following the submission of ‘Olympic Delivery Authority – M11 Logistics Centre Flood Risk 
Assessment – Addendum Report’ dated October 2008 the EA has since withdrawn their objection. 
The drainage solution provides attenuation via a dry pond to be located on the North West side of 
the M11.  
 
NATURAL ENGLAND. No objections in respect of either statutorily designated sites or legally 
protected species. Natural England advises that, potential impacts to breeding birds will need to be 
countered by scrub clearance being scheduled for outside the breeding season (Mar-Aug 
inclusive). As the western side of the site is close to areas of woodland and river valley habitat, 
they also strongly advise that lighting be kept to a bare minimum to reduce impacts on bat foraging 
in this area. With reference to the River Roding, Natural England advises that it is a very clean 
river with good quality habitat along its banks. The issue of drainage into the river will require 
Environment Agency consent to discharge into the river as set out in the flood-risk assessment. 
 
ESSEX POLICE. No objections. Highlights the opportunity to “design out crime, and design in 
community safety.” Also emphasise the additional strains pressures the London Olympics will 
place on the police.  A further letter was received from Essex Police, confirming that all concerns 
have been addressed.   
 
 
 

Page 53



 
 12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3 

 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

4 

Application Number: EPF/1650/08 

Site Name: M11 Motorway Service Area, 
Roding Lane, Chigwell, Essex  IG7 

Scale of Plot: 1:5000

Page 54



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1750/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 29 Retreat Way 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6EL 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Row 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs J Delve 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey rear extension. (Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
Reason:  To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended).  
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 
 
Reason:-  To safeguard the visual amenities of the locality.  
 

3 Prior to commencement of the works hereby permitted, a plan view clearly showing 
the location of two off street parking spaces at the property shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be built in 
accordance with the approved plan and retained as such thereafter, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that there is adequate provision of off street parking, with regard 
to Policy ST6 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 

Description of Proposal: 
 
Two storey rear extension. It would be located behind an existing first floor link, and measure 3.7m 
deep, 2.5m wide and 6.5m high to the ridge at the rear. 
 

Description of Site: 

Page 55



Rear of a two storey property at the end of a cul de sac in a new estate that is linked at first floor 
level with number 30 Retreat Way.  

 

Relevant History: 
EPF/1431/08 Two storey rear extension Withdrawn 

 

Policies Applied: 
Local Plan:  

Policy DBE2 – Effect on neighbouring properties 

Policy DBE6 – Car Parking in New Development 

Policy DBE9 – Excessive loss of amenity to neighbouring properties 

Policy DBE10 – Design of Residential Extensions 

Policy ST4 – Road Safety 

Policy ST6 – Vehicle Parking 

 
Issues and Considerations: 
The main issues that arise with this application are considered to be the following: 

 

• Design considerations  
• Residential Amenity 
• Vehicle parking 

 

Design Considerations  

The extension would be located to the rear of the existing first floor link, and as such would not be 
prominent in the streetscene as there is limited visibility. Furthermore, it is located at the end of a 
cul-de-sac with limited views from neighbouring houses. In design terms, it would have a low 
ridged, pitch roof and materials to match, complying with policy DBE10. There would be no 
significant impacts upon the wider area. 

 

Residential Amenity 

The proposed extension would be set off by 0.5m from the open shared boundary with number 30. 

 

The 0.5m set back from the boundary helps to reduce any harm to this neighbours outlook and 
would not be so overbearing. Whilst there will be a noticeable visual impact, it will not be to the 
detriment of their light or outlook from the side of their house. 

  

The extension would not project beyond the rear wall of the property and would not be directly 
visible when viewed from any principal window of the neighbouring property as it is only the side 
elevation that would be facing it. The proposal therefore complies with policies DBE2 and 9. 

 

Page 56



A proposed first floor window would be rear facing but set away from the side boundary by a 
metre; any overlooking would at an oblique angle towards number 30 and therefore there would be 
a limited impact on privacy. 

 

The level of loss of light at the rear of their property would not be excessive, as the extension is 
relatively small and as it is located to the Northeast of number 30, thereby not impacting on 
sunlight. 

 

Vehicle Parking 

The extension removes an off street parking space. The extension would enlarge an existing 
bedroom, but it would remain a three bedroom house. The area is not particularly well served by 
public transport and a maximum provision of two spaces would be a normal requirement. Whilst 
only indicated on the proposed drawing, any displaced parking could take place on the front drive. 
This would put the front part of the car on the pavement, but at the time of the Officers site visit, 
the objector’s car was parked in this way. Clearly in highway grounds this is not desirable, but 
these pair of houses are at the end of a cul-de-sac where there is unlikely to be pedestrian 
movement other than by these residents. The off-road one parking space is therefore acceptable.  

 

The 0.5m gap to the boundary maintains space for number 30 to park alongside the extension but 
still have room to open the car door to get in and out. On the withdrawn application, the wall would 
have sat on the boundary and made this difficult to achieve.  

  

Conclusion: 
This is a modest addition, leaving the rear garden unchanged, such that there is no harm to the 
density of the plot, the appearance of this or the neighbouring house, or the streetscene. The 
amenities of the neighbour will not be unduly harmed. Whilst the parking situation is not ideal, 
there is only low threat to highway safety. The proposal is therefore recommended for approval. 

 

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
PARISH COUNCIL: Objection. Loss of one car parking space, and overlooking. 

30 RETREAT WAY: Objected on following grounds: 

• Increased density. 
• Loss of light. 
• Loss of privacy. 
• Obstruct semi-rural views. 
• Unsightly. 

 

 

Page 57



 
123 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 

Report Item No: 6 
 

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

5 

Application Number: EPF/1650/08 

Site Name: M11 Motorway Service Area 
Roding Lane, Chigwell 

Scale of Plot: 1:5000

Page 58



Report Item No 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1780/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 45 Hillcrest Road 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4QH 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

APPLICANT: Mr David Faud 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey side extension, single storey rear extension one 
front, two rear and two side dormers to replace existing side 
dormers and rear dormer and single storey front extension. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
Reason:  To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended).  
 

2 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in the East and West side elevations at first floor level and in the proposed 
side dormers shall be fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames, and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 
 
Reason:-  To prevent the overlooking of neighbouring properties.  
 

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 
 
Reason:-  To safeguard the visual amenities of the locality.  
 

4 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order) no enclosure or balcony shall be 
formed at any time on any part of the roof of the development hereby approved 
without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:- To safeguard the privacy of adjacent properties.  
 

5 Prior to the development hereby approved first being brought into use, full details of 
the proposed boundary treatment on the East side boundary are to be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed boundary 
treatment is to be erected prior to the development hereby approved first being 

Page 59



brought into use, and retained as such thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority.  
 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions) 
. 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Two storey side extensions and single storey front and rear extensions, two rear dormers, one 
front dormer and two side dormers.  
 
The property would be extended at ground floor level to the rear by 4.5m over a 9m width, and by 
6.5m over a 4.4m wide section to the side/rear, replacing an existing detached garage. 
 
The proposed two storey side extension measures 3.0m wide with the front 2.5m section set in 
slightly, to leave 1.15m to the side boundary. The single storey front extension would be 6m wide 
by 1m deep. 
 
All the extended elements would have pitched/hipped roofs and be of matching materials to the 
existing. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
A two-storey detached house on a rectangular plot. The area consists of large detached 
properties. The site slopes down to the east across the site. The property to the east at number 47 
is a chalet bungalow. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0467/08 Single storey rear and front extensions, two storey side extension, front, rear and 
side dormers - Refused:  
 
Reason: “The proposed two storey side extension would be built within 1m of the site boundary, to 
a height of two storeys, and create a terracing effect and have an adverse impact on the character 
and appearance of the streetscene, contrary to policy DBE 10 of the adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations.” 
 
EPF1044/08 Single storey rear and front extensions, two storey side extension, alterations to 
roof with front, rear and side dormers. (Revised application) - Withdrawn. (This application showed 
a revised boundary line, including land purchased from the neighbouring resident to enlarge the 
gap to the side boundary, and thus overcome the previous reason for refusal. However, this strip 
of land did not come into the ownership of the applicant.) 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
East of England Plan (Regional Spatial Strategy) 
Policy LA1 – London Arc 

 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
CP 2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
DBE 9   Excessive Loss of amenities for neighbours 
DBE 10 Design of residential extensions 

Page 60



 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues that arise with this application are considered to be the following: 
 

• Impact on the streetscene 
• Impact on neighbouring amenity 

 
Particular attention must be given to ascertain the previous reason for refusal has been 
successfully overcome. 

Impact on the streetscene 
 

- The scheme will see the erection of a significant extension on the east flank, raising the 
height of the existing ridgeline by 0.5m.  

- The existing property has an unattractive rear dormer and a large flat roofed garage on the 
east flank, which is of no visual merit.  

- The existing gaps between the existing house to the boundary are 1m to the west (which 
would be maintained) and 3.2m to the east; a single storey detached garage is built to the 
East boundary, but set back some 10m from the front elevation, behind the main wall of the 
house. 

- The proposed rear single storey extension has an ‘L’ shaped plan, and is a maximum of 
6.5m deep from the existing rear elevation, replacing the garage and a small rear addition.  

- The proposed dormers are all pitched roofed, small in scale and are not out of place within 
the street scene. They replace similarly sized dormers. 

- The proposed side extension would be set a minimum of 0.5m away from the East side 
boundary at ground floor level, and a minimum of 1.15m away from the boundary at the 
front at first floor level. There will thus be no terracing effect. 

- The previous proposal was refused due to a lack of a 1m distance from the two storey 
extension to the site boundary and thus creating a terracing effect, and having an adverse 
impact on the character and appearance of the streetscene. 

- However, with the setback at first floor level, this revised proposal successfully overcomes 
the previous reason for refusal, and avoids a harmful terracing effect and is considered 
acceptable in the streetscene. 

 
Impact on neighbouring amenity 
 

- The rear single storey extension will be no deeper than the existing garage which it would 
replace, on the side to number 47, and therefore it would have no greater impact. 

- Obscure glazing the side dormers will safeguard the privacy of neighbours. 
- There will be no adverse loss of sunlight/daylight to No 43 Hillcrest to the west. 
- The side extension will have no significant effect on the sunlight/daylight to the rear 

elevation of No 47 to the east, and the rear extension will have no greater impact than the 
existing garage on the amenities of this property. 

- Clearly, the side extension results in the resultant house being nearer to the side of number 
47, but this impact is lessened by an existing 3m high hedge and their own garage, with 
their bungalow being about 5m away. 

- The neighbouring resident expressed concern that the side wall would be removed, and 
that the applicant had not undergone the correct procedure with regard to the Party Wall 
Act. 

- Whilst matters relating to the Party Wall Act are not material planning considerations, it is 
considered necessary to add a condition requiring details of the proposed boundary 
treatment on the East side boundary. This is so as to ensure that there is no severe loss of 

Page 61



privacy due to overlooking from the proposed ground floor side windows, and also to 
ensure that there is no unacceptably overbearing boundary treatment. 

 
Conclusion: 
 
The set back at first floor level successfully overcomes the previous reason for refusal, and avoids 
a harmful terracing effect, and is considered acceptable in the streetscene.  
 
The height difference between the extended house and the chalet bungalow at number 47 will be 
more noticeable with a closer separation distance, but not to the extent that it will appear 
overbearing. 
 
There would be no unacceptable effects from the proposed extensions upon the amenities of 
neighbouring residents. The proposal complies with policies DBE9 and DBE10 and is therefore 
recommended for approval. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
TOWN COUNCIL:  Noted the proposed two storey side extension would be built 1150mm away 
from the site boundary but reiterated its previous objection which was: 
Object, contrary to policies DBE9 (i) and (iii) and DBE10 (ii) and (a) of the local plan due to the 
side extension being built close to the boundary, which could cause a terracing effect, also the rear 
extension is out of proportion and may adversely affect the neighbouring properties. 
 
47 HILLCREST ROAD, LOUGHTON: Expressed concern that the applicant has not provided a 
certificate relating to the removal of the party wall. 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



 
 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
23 

 
 

 
 
  
 

41.5m

93
95

40

47

85

89

78

88

91

79

SL

MP 11

LB

HILLCREST ROAD

S
P

R
IN

G
 G

R
O

V
E

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

6 

Application Number: EPF/1780/08 

Site Name: 45 Hillcrest Road 
Loughton IG10 4QH 

Scale of Plot: 1:1250

Page 63



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1807/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 122 High Road  

Loughton  
Essex  
IG10 4HJ 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Mahendra Patel 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of Use from A1 (Retail) to D1 (Dental Surgery) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
Reason:  To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended).  
 

2 The layout of the premises shall be in accordance with the approved drawing No. 
702/01 and no part of the dental surgery or waiting room shall extend into the area 
described as 'Retail shop for dental goods' on this plan unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the LPA. 
 
Reason: To ensure the use of the premises is an appropriate town centre use and in 
the interest of the appearance of the street scene.  
 

3 Prior to the premises being brought into use for the purpose hereby permitted, a 
scheme providing for storage of refuse shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme as agreed shall be carried out on site 
before the use commences and maintained thereafter. 
 
Reason: In order to protect the amenity of the area. 
 

4 A shop window display of retail products in conjunction with the dental use shall be 
maintained at all times and no solid obstruction or blinds shall cover the front or side 
windows or anywhere within 1.0metre of the windows, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the LPA. 
 
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and to maintain the vitality and viability of 
the town centre. 
 

5 The premises shall be used solely for dental surgery and for no other purpose 
(including any other purpose in Class D1 of the Schedule to the Town & Country 
Planning (Use Classes) Order 2005, or in any provision equivalent to that Class in 

Page 64



any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order. 
 
Reason:-  To control other D1 uses, which may be detrimental to the viability and 
vitality of the town centre. 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of proposal: 
     
Permission is sought for the change of use of the existing ground floor Retail use A1 to D1 (Dental 
Surgery) use. 
  
Description of Site: 
 
The subject site is a ground floor A1 retail unit with residential flats at the upper floors. The site 
itself is situated within Loughton Town Centre, but outside the defined key frontage shopping area. 
There is a residential block Connaught Mews, behind to the west and together with the application 
site has been built within the last 5 years. Access into the rear of the site is directly from the High 
Road, under a void area to the side of the application premises, under the upper floors. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
 EPF/0127/02: Demolition of existing building and erection of a 3 storey building comprising car 

park and sales area to ground floor and office space to first and second floors together with the 
removal and replacement of the protected tree (whole site) Approved/ conditions 

 
 EPF/2130/02: Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 3 storey residential building with 

4 no. flats and 1 no. A1 commercial unit; and 3 storey residential building comprising 6 no. flats 
with parking (whole site) Approved/ conditions 

 
Polices Applied: 
 
Local Plan Policies 
E4A – Protection of employment sites 
TC1 – Town centre hierarchy 
TC3 – Town centre function 
TC4 – Non-retail frontage 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main concerns are the effect of loss of retail within the town centre location and whether it 
would harm the vitality and viability of the centre. 
  
Loss of retail unit within town centre frontage  
 
The proposal is to convert the ground floor retail use A1 of a vacant shop premises to a dental 
surgery, D1 use. 
  
The building has a floor area of some 60m² and the submitted plans show access into the surgery 
from a side existing door directly off the pavement, with the front of the building onto the High 
Street retaining a small section of some 10m² as retail use for the sale of dental goods served by 
another existing door. Despite this, the layout implies a dental surgery rather than part A1 retail 
use. 

Page 65



 
There are restrictions on non-retail uses in the Town Centre, which are primarily reserved to key 
retail frontages where policy T4 requires a percentage threshold of 30% must not be exceeded 
and safeguards against ‘dead’ frontage of non-retail. This is not a retail frontage as defined in the 
local plan and in accordance with policy T1 and T3; the dental surgery would be an appropriate 
town centre use. In this location, on a corner where there is a considerable separation distance to 
the next drinking establishment to the north at 126 High Road, the proposal would not adversely 
effect Loughton town centre’s position within the town centre hierarchy for the district. 
 
The A1 unit is vacant, although Council records show it used as a clothes shop in October 2007 
and therefore not vacant for two years as stated by the applicant however; it is considered that the 
proposed change would bring this vacant unit back into use, and provide a daytime use and 
pedestrian movement similar to an A1 use or combined with trips to other A1 uses in the town 
centre complying with TC3. The use proposed is for a functional service within a sustainable 
location in terms of accessibility to vehicles and arriving to the site by way of public means of 
transportation.  
 
In terms of neighbours’ amenity, any potential noise from the use of the premises, delivery and 
means of refuse storage can be covered by condition, but in any case is unlikely to result in more 
harm or disturbance than a retail use.  
 
The use of the premises as a dentist will provide some employment use, while it will also serve the 
needs of local residents, supported by the NHS West Primary Care Trust. With appropriate 
conditions, there will be no excessive environmental harm or harm to the amenities of surrounding 
properties, this complies with CF2.  
 

Conclusion: 
 
The proposal would bring the currently vacant site into an appropriate use, resulting in an 
additional service use within the town centre location to serve the local population and support 
local businesses and shops. The loss of the retail use in this case therefore appears to have policy 
support, but it is appropriate to seek a shop window display. This would contribute to the vitality 
and viability, without adversely affecting the town centre hierarchy and as such this scheme 
complies with the relevant local plan polices and is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
PARISH COUNCIL Object: The Committee noted the contents of a letter objection.  
The Committee objected to the change of use and the loss of another retail outlet in the town. 
 
LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION PLANS GROUP Object: Local plan specifies 30% non-
retail frontage in area of key retail frontage. Limit has already been closely approached or even 
exceeded. Would set an unfortunate precedent. Suitable premises can and should be found 
outside key retail areas.  
 
WEST ESSEX NHS PRIMARY CARE TRUST No objection: The NHS Trust supports this 
application as it is line with aims to improve access to NHS dentistry for local residents as it will 
enhance the health and well-being of the local population 
 
 
 
 

Page 66



 
 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2 

 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 

32.9m

32.9m

22
26

36

House

15

Fire Station

PH

10
8

149

1

11
2 

to
 12

0

145143

11
0

Bank

Club

10

197

1

2

Bank

Garage

177

179
181

183

9

171

11

Surgery

18

191
189

13
8

12
6

195

187b

to

Lopping Hall

193

187a

147

10
6

Crown

151

13
6

14
0

148

13

PH

13
2

12
8

11
9

15

14

12

4

asonic Hall

18

20
a

5

20

14

18
a

7

165

187 185

165a

PH

175 173

167

10

Forest Hall

8

10
2

94

98

1

PO

El Sub Sta

A - E 1

3 to

to4 
to

 1
0

Connaught
1

Mews

4

TCBs

Car Park

TCB

Park

Car

D Fn

SM
AR

TS
 L

AN
E

M
EW

S

Car Park

TCBs

Car Park

LB

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
O

A
D

Brook Path

H
IG

H
 R

O
AD

E

HIG
H R

OAD

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

7 

Application Number: EPF/1807/08 

Site Name: 122 High Road, Loughton  IG10 4HJ

Scale of Plot: 1:1250 

Page 67



Report Item No: 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1884/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: T11 Site  

Langston Road 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3TH 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Broadway 
 

APPLICANT: Polofind Ltd and Pioneer Technology Ltd 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Reserved matters application for proposed Data Centre. 
(Mixed B1/ B8) - Details of access, appearance, layout and 
scale (Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
Reason:  To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended).  
 

2 No development shall be commenced until a detailed drainage design report to 
demonstrate how the proposed development will control the discharge and 
attenuation of surface water run-off from the site, has been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The discharge rate must be acceptable to 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding to third parties, to the site itself, to 
improve water quality and to enhance biodiversity.  
 

3 The provision of suitable access arrangements to the application site in connection 
with the demolition/construction operations, to include wheel washing facilities, 
turning and off loading facilities for delivery /construction vehicles within the limits of 
the site together with an adequate parking area for those employed in developing 
the site. Details to be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority prior to commencement of 
development. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety during construction/demolition in 
accordance with the County Council's Highways and Transportation Development 
Control Policies as originally contained in Appendix G of the LTP 2006/2011 and 
refreshed by Cabinet Member decision on the 19/10/07 and Policy ST4 - Road 
Safety of the Epping Forest District Adopted Local Plan 1998, amended 2006. 
 
 

Page 68



4 No occupation until such time that the developer has provided the highway works 
shown in principle on drawings H080094/01 rev D and H080094/07 rev D. To 
include a 90m x 4.5m x 90m visibility splay, junction radii, and 2m footway extending 
the entire frontage of the site to connect with the existing footway at either end. 
Details to be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Highway Authority prior to commencement of development. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with the 
County Council's Highways and Transportation Development Control Policies as 
originally contained in Appendix G of the LTP 2006-2011 and refreshed by Cabinet 
Member decision on the 19/10/07 and Policy ST4 - Road Safety of the Epping 
Forest District Adopted Local Plan 1998, amended 2006. 
 

5 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of 
hard and soft landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation 
have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The 
approved scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the 
completion of the development hereby approved.  
 
The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of 
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a 
timetable for its implementation.  If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to 
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the 
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, 
and in writing. 
 
The statement must include details of all the means by which successful 
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting 
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant 
protection and aftercare.  It must also include details of the supervision of the 
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 
 
Reason:-  To comply with the duties indicated in Section 197 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 so as to ensure that the details of the development of the 
landscaping are complementary, and to ensure a satisfactory appearance to the 
development. 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application for development of a significant 
scale and/or wider concern and is recommended for approval (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A 
© of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a building to house a data centre.  
Data centres house large numbers of IT equipment, which contains electronic date that enables 
business transactions to take place.  The applicant advises that in order to perform the function of 
simultaneous transactions, the site needs to be located within 40 miles of the City of London, 
which enables electronic transactions to take place almost simultaneously, which is critical given 
valuations of transactions fluctuate by the second.  It is considered that the use does not neatly fit 

Page 69



into any one use class and instead comprises a number of different uses, primarily B1 and B8 
(storage and distribution).  Accordingly, it is considered that the Council should consider the 
proposed use as being sui generis.   
 
With regard to the physical development of the site, the proposed building would have a footprint 
of approximately 5400 square metres.  It would have a flat roof, with a height of approximately 10 
metres.   
 
38 car parking spaces are provided, including the provision of six disabled bays to the front of the 
site.  The main access to the site would be from Langston Road, to the front of the proposed data 
centre building.  A potential future access road to land at the rear of the site is shown on the plans, 
but not included within the application red line area and whilst in the same ownership, it is a 
separate matter for any future planning application.   
 
Description of Site: 
 
Part vacant, part temporary car park site of 1.1 ha located on the south-east side of the road, 
within Langston Road Business Park. The site is bordered by small business units at Loughton 
Seedbed Centre to the north-east and council depot to the south-west. Vacant land within the 
Metropolitan Green Belt is to the south-east with the M11 motorway just beyond. The estate is 
east of Chigwell Lane, and in walking distance of The Broadway shops and Debden Underground 
Station. 

 

The site has an outline planning approval for any combination of B1/B2/B8 uses.   

 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1450/06.  Outline application to develop the land for mixed B1, B2 or B8 uses.  Approved 
12/10/06. 
EPF/1230/08 – reserved matter application for proposed data centre – Withdrawn by the applicant 
before expiry of the application in order to overcome concerns raised by Essex CC Highway 
Officers and The Environment Agency.  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
East of England Plan 
 
T1: Regional Transport Strategy Objectives and Outcomes  
T4: Urban Transport 
EN7: Quality in the built Environment 
 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations 
 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings 
E2 – Redevelopment of Existing Premises for Business and General Industrial Uses 
E3 – Warehousing in respect of E2 
GB7A – Conspicuous Development  
ST2 – Accessibility of Development  
ST4 – Road safety 
ST6 – Vehicle parking 
CP4 – Energy Conservation 
CP5 – Sustainable Building 
I1A – Planning Obligations 

Page 70



 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues in this case are: 
 

1. The acceptability of the use of the site; 
2. The impact of the development on the character and appearance of the area; 
3. The impact of the development on the adjacent green belt; 
4. Flood risk; 
5. The acceptability of existing and proposed site landscaping; and  
6. Highways and parking arrangements.   

 
1. The acceptability of the use 
 

The site is in an area designated in the local plan for employment purposes.  Policy E2 states 
that the Council will grant planning permission for the redevelopment or extension of existing 
premises for business and general industrial uses.  Policy E3 states that in employment areas 
the Council may grant planning permission for warehousing or distribution uses, provided that 
the firm can demonstrate that there is a particular need to locate there because of its existing 
or potential trading links locally and there are no suitable alternative sites available.  In this 
instance, it is considered that the proposed use, which would mainly comprise elements of B1 
and some B8 use, would comply with both these policies.  
 
There is planning permission for a similar development further along to the west on this side of 
the road within this business park, granted by this Committee earlier this year, so the principle 
has been accepted and the use is appropriate to the area. Furthermore, whilst the proposed 
use would be sui generis, it would comprise elements of business and storage uses which 
would be compatible with the outline planning permission.   
 

2. Impact on character and appearance 
 

The proposed building would have a large mass.  However, its elevations would be broken by 
its design and the use of varying materials; metal and glass panels and metal louvers adding 
elevational interest.  Having regard to this and to the siting of the building within an 
employment area, it is considered that the finished appearance of the building would be 
appropriate.  It is considered that the presently vacant site would be visually enhanced by the 
development.   

 
3. Impact on the green belt 
 

Policy GB7A of the local plan states that the Council will refuse planning permission for 
development conspicuous from within or beyond the green belt which would have an 
excessive adverse impact of the openness, rural character or visual amenities of the green 
belt.   In this instance, having regard to the design of the building and the location of the area 
of Green Belt land in question, situated between the motorway and Langston Road, it is not 
considered that the development would appear overly conspicuous to the extent that it would 
have an excessively adverse impact on the green belt.  

 
4. Flood risk 

 
Negotiations have taken place between the applicant and the Environment Agency (EA) and 
the latter are now satisfied with the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and withdraw 
their previous objection, subject to the inclusion of a condition requiring a further detailed 
drainage report to demonstrate how the development will control surface water run-off to 
prevent the risk of flooding and improve water quality. The FRA satisfied the EA that, despite 

Page 71



not raising objections at the Outline planning application stage, there would not be flood risk 
downstream.   

 
5. Site landscaping 
 

Areas of land around the perimeter of the site have been designated for landscaping. There is 
sufficient area at the front between the access road and the proposed perimeter fence to 
provide a suitable scheme that would soften the hard-surfaced areas and car parking. This can 
be achieved by a further condition for landscaping.   

 
6. Highway and parking matters 
 
 The County Council Highways section commented on the outline application and required a 

financial contribution because of the likely traffic generation that a mix of B1, B2 and B8 uses 
were likely to generate. A Unilateral Undertaking was entered into confirming that a transport 
contribution sum be paid, worked out by a formula, dependant on a final mix of B1, B2 and B8 
use, as well as Priority Junction Works be undertaken. A data centre will generate only a small 
amount of traffic compatible with local highway and traffic conditions and only 40 spaces are 
required. This is because the staff works on shifts of about 15 up to a maximum of 50 people 
at any one time, inclusive of visitors, to cater for the overlap in staff while employees change 
shift. Highway Officers do not consider that a contribution is justified for a data centre where 
traffic movement will be low, but foregoing the financial contribution should be compensated by 
a requirement for other necessary highway works to be carried out. In this case, and directly 
related to the development, the site has no pavement in this part of Langston road. The 
highway ownership ends at kerb level and therefore a new pavement can be formed, which is 
in the application site and provided for by the applicant at their cost. This will link with the 
existing footways either side at the Council depot and the Seed-Bed Centre and would be 
welcomed. Should the data centre not go ahead and another reserved matter application be 
submitted in line with the outline permission, then the contribution would still be required.  

 
 This satisfies policy ST4 and ensures that the development is well related to the road a 

pedestrian safety is improved along this part of Langston road as well as encouraging walking 
and use of public transport as opposed to using the motor car.  

 
Other Matters 
 
With regard to policy I1A of the Local Plan, it is considered that the proposed development would 
result in increased use of The Broadway local shops, but in any case the outline permission 
requires a financial contribution to the Loughton Broadway Enhancement Scheme. 

 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above appraisal, it is considered that the proposed use and the physical 
development proposed would be acceptable.  Previous outstanding matters relating to flood risk 
and highways have been addressed. The data centre represents an appropriate use of the site 
and supports employment use without adding significantly to traffic movements at the Langston 
Road/ Chigwell junction. Accordingly, it is recommended that planning permission be Granted.   
 
SUMMARY  OF  REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL.  No objection.   
 
 
 
 

Page 72



 
 
123 

 
 

 
  
 

 

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

8 

Application Number: EPF/1884/08 

Site Name: T11 Site  
Langston Road, Loughton IG10 3TH

Scale of Plot: 1:5000

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee 
South 
 
Date of meeting: South – 05/11/08 
                              
 
Subject: Probity in Planning – Appeal Decisions, April 2008 to September 2008. 
  
Officer contact for further information: Nigel Richardson, (01992 – 56 4018). 
Democratic Services Officer: Rebecca Perrin, (01992 56 4532) 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Planning Appeal Decisions be noted. 
 
Report Detail: 
 
Background 
 
1.   (Director of Planning & Economic Development) In compliance with the 
recommendation of the District Auditor, this report advises the decision-making 
committees of the results of all successful appeals, particularly those refused by 
committee contrary to officer recommendation.  The purpose is to inform the 
committee of the consequences of their decisions in this respect and, in cases where 
the refusal is found to be unsupportable on planning grounds, an award of costs may 
be made against the Council. 
 
2. To set the context, a Best Value Performance Indicator was for district 
councils to aim to have less than 40% of their decisions overturned on appeal.   The 
latest known figure for the national average for District Councils is 30.9%.  That BVPI 
was scrapped but recently replaced by one which records planning appeals only (not 
advertisement, listed buildings, enforcements, telecommunications or tree related 
appeals) and where the Council sets its own target – set this year to align with top 
quartile performance at 25%.   In fact in recent years the Council has been more 
successful than the national average with only 18% in 2003/04, 29% in 2004/05, 22% 
in 2005/06 and 30% in 2006/07. 
 
Performance 
 
3. Over the six-month period between April and September 2008, the Council 
received 78 decisions on appeals – 75 planning and related appeals and 3 
enforcement appeals.  Of the 75 planning and related appeals, 24 were allowed  
(32%) and 2 of the 3 enforcement appeals were allowed  – a combined total of 
33.33% of the Council’s decisions being overturned during this period. 
 
4. For the previous year, 2007/08 as a whole: a total of 132 decisions were 
received – 120 planning appeals and 12 enforcement appeals.   Of the 120 planning 
appeals 36 were allowed but none of the enforcement appeals – a total of 27.30% of 
the Council’s decisions being overturned. 
 
5. For LPI 45, which only considers appeals against the refusal of planning 
permission (so does not include advertisement, listed building, enforcement, 

Agenda Item 8

Page 75



telecommunications or tree-related appeals, nor appeals against conditions), the 
performance figure for this 6 month period is 26.86%. The full year target is 25%.  
 
Planning Appeals 
 
6. The proportion of appeals that arose from decisions of the committees to 
refuse contrary to the recommendation of officers during the 6-month period was 
24% and of the 18 decisions that this percentage represents, the Council was 
successful in sustaining its objection in 7 of them. The following remaining 11 were 
lost: 
 

EPF/1504/07 – 41 & 43 Epping New Road, Buckhurst Hill - First floor side and 
two storey side and rear extensions to both properties (revised application) (Area 
Plans South) 
EPF/2217/07 – 31 Amberley Road, Buckhurst Hill – Roof extension to form a 2 
bedroom end of terrace bungalow (Area Plans South)  
EPF/1581/07 – 154 High Road, Chigwell – Demolition of existing bungalow and 
construction of 3 apartments and underground parking (Area Plans South) 
EPF/1625/07 - 1 Connaught Avenue, Loughton – Two storey side extension for 
Office use (Area Plans South) 
EPF/1783/07 – 1 Connaught Avenue, Loughton - Two storey side and single 
storey rear extension for office use (Area Plans South) 
EPF/2598/07 – 1Connaught Avenue, Loughton – Single storey side and rear 
extension (Area Plans South) 
EPF/2179/07 – Land Adjacent to Broadbents, south of 4 Buttercross Lane, 
Epping – single and two storey extensions (Area Plans East) 
EPF/1805/06 – Last Compound, Woodside Trading estate, Woodside, 
Thornwood – Security fencing over 2m high for security of parking cars, vans and 
lorries and storage container with temporary roof (Area Plans East) 
EPF/1553/07 – Land to rear of The Trail, Poplar Row, Theydon Bois – New 
residential unit adjoining existing barn (Area Plans East) 
EPF/1554/07 – Land to rear of The Trail, Poplar Row, Theydon Bois – Grade II 
Listed Building application for a new residential unit adjoining existing barn (Area 
Plans East)   
EPF/1458/07 – Field Adj. to Friars Lodge, Tylers Road, Roydon – Erection of 4 x 
loose boxes with tack room and hay storage, wooden construction fixed to 
concrete base (Area Plans West)| 
 

 
7. The 7 committee refusals that were sustained were: 
 

EPF/1754/06 – Land to rear of 8 Connaught Avenue, Loughton – Erection of 2 
storey detached house with partial basement (Area Plans South)    
EPF/0440/07 – 12-14 High Road, Buckhurst Hill – Demolition of 2 bungalows and 
replacement with 2 blocks of flats (14 total) with 100% parking and disabled bay 
(Area Plans South) 
EPF/2196/07 – Land to rear of 67 Lower Queens Road, Buckhurst Hill – erection 
of new 3 bedroom dwelling (Area Plans South) 
EPF/1876/07 – 126 High Road, Loughton - First floor extension to restaurant 
(Area Plans South) 
EPF/0106/07 – 4 The Heights, Bumbles Green Lane, Nazeing – Erection of a 
storage building for garden furniture and maintenance machinery (retention of 
existing but with the reduced ridge height) (Area Plans West) 

Page 76



EPF/2342/07 – Barkers Farm, Mount End Road, Theydon Mount – Change of 
use from farm office/ice cream parlour to supervisory residential unit to goat farm 
(Area Plans East)  
EPF/2403/07 – 9 Ravensmere, Epping – Ground and First floor extensions, new 
hipped roof with front and rear dormers and replacement front porch (Area Plans 
East) 
 

 
8. Therefore, the committees are urged to continue to heed the advice that if 
they are considering setting aside the officer’s recommendation it should only be in 
cases where members are certain they are acting in the wider public interest and 
where the committee officer can give a good indication of some success at defending 
the decision. The Area Committees were clearly just in refusing planning permission 
7 of the 18 above cases, but this was somewhat marred by the costs awarded 
against the Council in the 3 planning applications at 1 Connaught Avenue, Loughton 
(see point 9 below).   
 
Costs 
 
9. A full award of costs, a claim of £56,551, were awarded against the Council in 
respect of three planning appeals relating to 1 Connaught Avenue, Loughton. This 
appeal took place over 3 days as a public inquiry and the Planning Inspector allowed 
all 3 appeals relating to extensions to existing offices. In allowing the costs, the 
Planning inspector concluded that the Council had acted unreasonably in refusing 
two of the planning applications and in one of the two reasons in the third application, 
judging that the Council had failed to justify these refusals and therefore caused the 
appellant to incur and waste expense unnecessarily.  With no budget provision for 
appeal costs, the final negotiated payment of £50,000 represents a substantial sum, 
plus this does not account for the expense of the council employing a Planning 
Barrister and an external highway consultant to defend the appeal.   

 
Conclusions 
 
10. The Council’s performance for this 6-month period has just fallen short of the 
Local Performance Indicator and to achieve 25% by the year end, when reported 
again in 6 months time, requires Planning Officers and Members to consider very 
carefully whether a refusal of planning permission is likely to be sustained by the 
Planning Inspectorate. 
 
11. Note must be taken of the costs award in relation to 1 Connaught Avenue, 
Loughton, plus the award of costs relating to the allowed appeal for Wansfell College, 
Piercing Hill, Theydon Bois, which is about to be settled at approximately £40,000. 
We have, however, not had many planning related award of costs against the 
Council over the years, helped by the fact that the appellant does not often make a 
claim. However, when it does occur, usually in the case of appeals heard at a public 
inquiry, then award of costs can clearly be expensive.   
 
12. The decisions are listed in the Council Bulletin from time to time but a full list 
of decisions over this six month period appears below. 
 
Appeal Decisions April to September 2008 
 
Planning Appeals Allowed: 
 

Page 77



EPF/1581/07 154 HIGH ROAD, CHIGWELL, 
ESSEX 

Demolition of existing bungalow and 
construction of three apartments and 
underground parking. 

EPF/0193/07 KINGS HEAD GARAGE, HIGH 
ROAD, NORTH WEALD     
EPPING, ESSEX. 

Retention of change of use of land from 
garage to hand car wash business. 
Stationing of portakabin and storage 
container on land. 

EPF/1191/07 REAR OF 16 NEW FOREST 
LANE, CHIGWELL, ESSEX   

Erection of a detached house. 

EPF/2598/07 1 CONNAUGHT AVENUE, 
LOUGHTON, ESSEX 

Single storey side and rear extension. 

EPF/1625/07 1 CONNAUGHT AVENUE, 
LOUGHTON, ESSEX 

Two storey side extension for office use.

EPF/1783/07 1 CONNAUGHT AVENUE, 
LOUGHTON, ESSEX 

Two storey side extension and single 
storey rear extension for office use. 

EPF/1748/07 42- 52 COOPERSALE 
COMMON, COOPERSALE, 
EPPING, ESSEX 

Amendment to dwelling approved 
(EPF/744/03) with the addition of two 
front  dormers and three rear velux 
windows and a loft conversion. 

EPF/0560/08 HIGHWAYS VERGE TO THE 
IMMEDIATE NORTH EAST OF   
THE JUNCTION OF BACK LANE 
AND THE STREET, SHEERING, 
ESSEX   

Telecommunications installation 
comprising of one 8 metre `timber 
effect` pole  with one omni antenna and 
four ground based equipment cabinets 
(to replace  existing installation at 
nearby Woodlands Farm). 

EPF/2187/07 LAND TO REAR OF 6 RED 
OAKS MEAD, THEYDON BOIS, 
ESSEX 

Erection of dwelling in part of rear 
garden. 

EPF/2217/07 31 AMBERLEY ROAD, 
BUCKHURST HILL, ESSEX 

Roof extension to form a two bedroom 
end of terrace bungalow. 

EPF/1532/07 LAND TO THE REAR OF 165 
MANOR ROAD, CHIGWELL, 
ESSEX  

Outline application for the erection of 
three domestic garages. 

EPF/1998/07 26 WOODGREEN ROAD, 
WALTHAM ABBEY, ESSEX 

Single storey rear extension to replace 
existing conservatory. 

EPF/0875/07 107-111 EPPING NEW ROAD, 
BUCKHURST HILL, ESSEX 

Demolition of existing building and 
erection of a block of eight flats 
(renewal of  planning approval 
EPF/435/02). 

EPF/1187/07 2 QUEENS ROAD, LOUGHTON, 
ESSEX 

Retention of replacement garage and 
addition of a tiled roof and erection of 
tool  shed (revised application). 

EPF/1554/07 LAND TO THE REAR OF 'THE 
TRAIL'  POPLAR ROW, 
THEYDON BOIS, ESSEX 

Grade II Listed Building application for a 
new residential unit adjoining existing  
barn (revised application).   

EPF/1553/07 LAND TO THE REAR OF 'THE 
TRAIL', POPLAR ROW, 
THEYDON BOIS, ESSEX 

New residential unit adjoining existing 
barn (revised application).  

EPF/1504/07 41 & 43 EPPING NEW ROAD, 
BUCKHURST HILL, ESSEX 

First floor side and two storey side and 
rear extensions to both properties 
(revised application). 

EPF/2179/07 LAND ADJACENT TO 
BROADBENTS, 
BUTTERCROSS LANE, 
EPPING, ESSEX 

Erection of 1 two storey house. 

Page 78



EPF/0392/07 ORCHARD LEIGH HOUSE, 
NURSERY ROAD, NAZEING, 
ESSEX 

Security fence. 

 
EPF/2458/07 OAKWOOD PARADE, 

OAKWOOD HILL, LOUGHTON, 
ESSEX 

Erection of 13 metre high slimline 
telecommunications column next to 
road kerb  in front of 1 and 3 Oakwood 
Parade, together with ground level 
equipment  cabinet. 

EPF/2488/07 8 SPARELEAZE HILL, 
LOUGHTON, ESSEX 

Erection of new front wall. 

EPF/1805/06 LAST COMPOUND, WOODSIDE 
TRADING ESTATE  
WOODSIDE, THORNWOOD, 
NORTH WEALD  ESSEX 

Security fencing over two metres high 
for security of parking cars, vans and  
lorries and storage container with 
temporary roof. 

 
Planning Appeals Dismissed 
 
EPF/0040/08 BARKERS FARM, MOUNT END  

THEYDON MOUNT, ESSEX 
Stationing of caravan for on-site 
supervision of goat farm.  

EPF/1825/06 FAIRLANDS FARM, 
ROOKWOOD HALL  ANCHOR 
LANE, ABBESS RODING, 
ESSEX 

Change of use of buildings to Class B1 
and B8 uses. 

EPF/0940/07 1 LARSONS COTTAGE, 
HAMLET HILL, ROYDON  
ESSEX 

Removal of agricultural occupancy 
condition. 

EPF/0796/07 EAST PARK LODGE, FOREST 
HALL, NORTON LANE, HIGH 
ONGAR, ESSEX 

Two storey side extension and 
demolition of existing garage. 

EPF/1151/07 8 HOMEFIELDS, CHURCH 
LANE, MATCHING, ESSEX 

Two storey side and rear extensions 
and porch. 

EPF/0902/07 THRESHERS, HASTINGWOOD 
ROAD  HASTINGWOOD, 
NORTH WEALD, ESSEX 

Change of use of disused former 
agricultural land to storage as part of 
existing  waste transfer station and 
retention of metal palisade security 
fencing and gates. 

EPF/2342/07 BARKERS FARM, MOUNT END,  
THEYDON MOUNT, ESSEX 

Change of use from farm office/ice 
cream parlour to supervisory residential 
unit for goat farm. 

EPF/0332/07 ASHVIEW, HAMLET HILL, 
ROYDON, ESSEX 

Certificate of Lawfulness of an existing 
use for the siting of a mobile home for  
residential purposes.  

EPF/1772/07 LAND TO THE NORTH 
BOUNDARY OF GRANGE  
FARM, OFF HIGH ROAD, 
CHIGWELL, ESSEX 

Outline application for the construction 
of 116 dwellings (60% for rent and 40%  
for shared ownership). 

EPF/1754/06 LAND TO THE REAR OF 8 
CONNAUGHT AVENUE, 
LOUGHTON, ESSEX 

Erection of two storey detached house 
with partial basement (revised 
application). 

EPF/1274/06 LAND AT THE MEADOWS  
WALTHAM ROAD, LONG 
GREEN, NAZEING  ESSEX. 

Change of use of land to a residential 
caravan site for twenty-two gypsy 
families, each with two caravans. 

EPF/1762/07 LAND AT BILDAKIN, 
TATSFIELD AVENUE  

Demolition of existing detached 
bungalow and erection of replacement 

Page 79



NAZEING, ESSEX dwelling. 

EPF/1745/07 DAHMOI, SEWARDSTONE 
ROAD, WALTHAM ABBEY, 
ESSEX 

Proposed new roof extension and 
dormers to front and rear, proposed 
garage conversion, widening of existing 
vehicle crossover and new crossover 
and erection of new boundary wall and 
electric gates (revised application). 

EPF/1860/07 1-3 COOPERS HILL, ONGAR, 
ESSEX 

Change of use for the retention of car 
valeting & hand car wash and retention  
of canopy. 

EPF/1648/07 64 FOREST EDGE, 
BUCKHURST HILL, ESSEX 

Two storey side and single storey rear 
extension (revised application). 

EPF/2021/07 45 TOWER ROAD, EPPING, 
ESSEX 

Retention of safety railing to rear 
balcony. 

EPF/2124/07 15 LIME CLOSE, BUCKHURST 
HILL, ESSEX 

New attached dwelling. 

EPF/1876/07 MINX BAR & SHEESHA 
RESTAURANT  126 HIGH 
ROAD, LOUGHTON, ESSEX 

Single storey first floor extension to 
restaurant. 

EPF/0440/07 12 -14 HIGH ROAD, 
BUCKHURST HILL, ESSEX  

Demolition of two bungalows and 
replacement with two blocks of flats  (14 
in total) with 100% parking and disabled 
bay. 

EPF/0106/07 4 THE HEIGHTS, BUMBLES 
GREEN LANE, NAZEING  
ESSEX 

Erection of a storage building for garden 
furniture and maintainace machinery 
(retention of existing but with reduced 
ridge height). 

EPF/1869/07 12 -14 HIGH ROAD, 
BUCKHURST HILL, ESSEX 

Demolition of two bungalows and 
replacement with block of flats (12 in 
total)  with 100% parking. 

EPF/1147/07 4 FLAGSTAFF ROAD, 
WALTHAM ABBEY, ESSEX 

Two storey side extension. 

EPF/0742/07 THEYDON TOWERS, 
THEYDON ROAD, THEYDON 
BOIS, ESSEX 

Replacement of House 2. 

EPF/1589/07 LAND ADJOINING ELMWOOD, 
COMMON ROAD, ROYDON, 
ESSEX 

Erection of a four bedroom house. 

EPF/1851/07 HOPLANDS, RIVERSIDE 
AVENUE, NAZEING, ESSEX 

Conversion of single storey bungalow to 
two storey dwelling. 

EPF/1227/07 CREEDS FARM, BURY LANE, 
EPPING, ESSEX 

Retention of a storage shed. 

EPF/2425/07 THE COACH HOUSE, GRAVEL 
LANE, CHIGWELL, ESSEX 

Change of use of existing coach house 
to dwelling (revised application). 

EPF/1669/07 THE YARD, REAR OF 16 
SHEERING LOWER ROAD, 
SHEERING, ESSEX  

Erection of detached garage. 

EPF/0620/07 LAURELS, 
SAWBRIDGEWORTH ROAD, 
SHEERING, ESSEX 

Extension to existing conservatory, 
installation of front gates and post. 

EPF/2088/07 33 PATERNOSTER HILL, 
WALTHAM ABBEY, ESSEX 

Loft conversion with rear dormer 
window and roof extension with hip to 
gable. 

Page 80



EPF/1881/07 SUTTONS MANOR, LONDON 
ROAD, STAPLEFORD TAWNEY, 
ESSEX 

Proposed construction of a three storey 
side extension to provide 3 no. two 
bedroom self-contained flats. 

EPF/1893/07 SUTTONS MANOR, LONDON 
ROAD, STAPLEFORD TAWNEY, 
ESSEX 

Grade II Listed Building application for 
proposed construction of a three storey 
side extension to provide 3 no. two 
bedroom self-contained flats. 

EPF/2446/07 37 MEADOW WAY, CHIGWELL, 
ESSEX 

Replacement of existing roof with 
mansard roof with front and rear dormer 
windows. 

EPF/2099/07 75 BEAMISH CLOSE, NORTH 
WEALD, ESSEX 

Erection of detached dwelling. 

EPF/1405/07 OAK LODGE, WOOLMONGERS 
LANE, HIGH ONGAR, ESSEX 

Two storey side extension. 

EPF/0792/07 157 HIGH STREET, ONGAR, 
ESSEX 

Grade II Listed Building application for 
additional signage to property. 

EPF/2384/07 32 SUN STREET, WALTHAM 
ABBEY, ESSEX 

Conversion to form three flats including 
first floor additions to rear buildings with  
pitched roof and retention of ground 
floor shop (revised application). 

EPF/1702/07 LAND AT THE JUNCTION OF 
CHESTNUT AVENUE WITH 
HORNBEAM ROAD, 
BUCKHURST HILL, ESSEX 

Erection of a four bedroom house and 
double garage. 

EPF/2403/07 9 RAVENSMERE, EPPING, 
ESSEX 

Ground and first floor extensions, new 
hipped roof with front and rear dormers  
and replacement front porch (revised 
application). 

EPF/0775/07 KINGS OAK, NURSERY ROAD, 
HIGH BEACH, WALTHAM 
ABBEY, ESSEX  

Erection of single storey extensions to 
side and rear. 

EPF/2432/07 215A FOREST LODGE, 
SMART'S LANE, LOUGHTON, 
ESSEX 

Loft conversion with mansard roof. 

EPF/2301/07 PASLOWS FIELD, KING 
STREET, HIGH ONGAR, ESSEX 

Erection of stables, barn and ancillary 
facilities including a manege. 

EPF/2417/07 PIGGOTTS CO LTD, 43 
LONDON ROAD, STANFORD 
RIVERS, ESSEX 

Retention of two mobile homes for staff 
accommodation. 

EPF/2601/07 LITTLE THORBENS BARN, 
TOOT HILL ROAD, ONGAR, 
ESSEX  

Double bay extension to existing double 
garage. 

EPF/2726/07 WAITROSE, 27-43 QUEENS 
ROAD, BUCKHURST HILL, 
ESSEX 

One advertisement measuring 1710mm 
x 1160mm. 

EPF/1837/07 27 UPPER PARK, LOUGHTON, 
ESSEX 

Side dormer window. 

EPF/2196/07 LAND TO REAR OF 67 LOWER 
QUEENS ROAD, BUCKHURST 
HILL, ESSEX 

Erection of new three bedroom dwelling 
(revised application). 

EPF/1871/07 17 BARN HILL, ROYDON, 
ESSEX 

Single storey rear extension (revised 
application). 

EPF/1880/07 136 MANOR ROAD, CHIGWELL, 
ESSEX 

Loft conversion, ground and first floor 
front extension.  

Page 81



EPF/2097/07 24 SUN STREET, WALTHAM 
ABBEY, ESSEX 

Grade II Listed Building application for a 
ground floor extension to both shops  
and first and second floor rear addition 
to form four flats (revised application).  

EPF/2089/07 24 SUN STREET, WALTHAM 
ABBEY, ESSEX 

Ground floor extension to both shops 
and first and second floor rear addition 
to  form four flats (revised application). 

EPF/1858/07 9 NEW FOREST LANE, 
CHIGWELL, ESSEX 

Two storey rear and single storey front 
extension. 

ENF/0337/07 1-3 COOPERS HILL, ONGAR, 
ESSEX 

Change of use of the car park area to a 
hand car wash centre and the erection  
of a canopy in connection with the said 
use. 

 
Enforcement Appeals  
 

1. 1-3 COOPERS HILL, ONGAR – Change of use of car park area to a hand 
car wash and erection of canopy - DISMISSED  

2. LAND AT WILLINGALE AIRFIELD, OFF CANNONS LANE, FYFIELD – Use 
of land as shooting ground and erection of shooting stands – PART 
ALLOWED (Use as shooting ground)/ PART DISMISSED (shooting stands) 

3. KINGS HEAD GARAGE, HIGH ROAD, NORTH WEALD – Creation of a 
hand car wash centre and the stationing of portable buildings, erection of a 
canopy and advertisements – ALLOWED. 

Page 82


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Plans South Map

	3 Minutes
	7 Development Control
	Area Plans South Schedule

	8 Probity in Planning Report

